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SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING

MINUTES*

(*In order discussed)

Board of Directors Meeting
January 5, 2017

6:30 p.m.
Board Members Present: Tim Lipinski
Pip Marquez de la Plata (arr. 6:38 pm)
Rich Holmer
Gaylord Schaap
Sukey Robb-Wilder
Board Members Absent: (None)
Staff in Attendance: Steve Mack, General Manager
Julie Kenny, Secretary to the Board
Others in Attendance: Robin Donoghue, District Legal Counsel

l. CALL TO ORDER

The properly agendized meeting was called to Order by President Robb-Wilder at 6:32 p.m.

1. CHANGES TO AGENDA and DECLARATION OF CONFLICT (6:32
p.m.)

None.

IIl. CONSENT CALENDAR (6:33 p.m.)

Director Rob-Wilder reviewed the items on the Consent Calendar. Director Holmer moved to
approve the Consent Calendar. Director Lipinski seconded. Motion carried 4-0. The following
items were approved:

A. Approval of the Minutes of the December 1, 2016 Regular Meeting.
B. Approval of Operations Warrants/Online payments/EFT payment.
C. Receipt of Item(s) of Correspondence: (None.)





IV. PUBLIC COMMENT (6:34 p.m.)

None.
V. ADMINISTRATIVE (6:34 p.m.)*
*in the order discussed
A-. (6:34 p.m.) Discussion/Action re Draft letter regarding Fish Flow Project DEIR and

Sonoma County Water Agency Petitions to Change Decision 1610. The GM
provided an overview of this item. Comments were made by Legal Counsel Robin
Donoghue.

** Director Marquez de la Plata arrived at 6:38 p.m.

Questions and discussion ensued. Director Marquez de la Plata commented on the
District's meeting with Supervisor-Elect Lynda Hopkins. Directors Holmer and Marquez
de la Plata volunteered to work on a press release to District customers regarding our
perspective on the DEIR and alerting them of the opportunity to submit their own
comments. Further discussion ensued.

V-B.  (7:39 p.m.) Discussion/Action re Expiration and/or Possible Extension, etc. of
Lease with Ferrellgas for District Office Space. The GM provided an overview of this
item. Discussion ensued. The GM requested Robin Donoghue to prepare an addendum
to the current lease.

V-C. (7:45 p.m.) Discussion/Action re Introduction tot he FY 2017-18 Operating and
Capital Improvement Budget Process. The GM provided an overview of this item.
Brief discussion ensued. President Robb-Wilder informally appointed Directors Lipinski
and Schaap to an Ad Hoc Budget Committee to last until the FY 2017-18 Budget was
approved.

VI. GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT (7:52 p.m.)

The General Manager reported on the following items:
Water Production and Sales

Leaks

Guerneville rainfall and projected weekend rainfall
River Lane Property Sale

Russian River Flooding Planning

2017 CIP

TAP Training

Toilet Rebate/Direct Install Program

In-House Construction Projects

0. Gantt Chart

BoOoNooO WD

Discussion ensued.

Vil. BOARD MEMBERS’ ANNOUNCEMENTS/COMMENTS

(8:12 p.m.)
1. Director Lipinski shared two news articles from other areas regarding water issues in the
news.
2. Director Lipinski wondered whether a history of the District existed.





VIIl. CLOSED SESSION (None)

IX. ITEMS FOR THE NEXT AGENDA (8:17 p.m.)

Ferrellgas lease
DEIR Press Release
Appointment of Ad Hoc Budget Committee

wnN ke

ADJOURN
The meeting adjourned at 8:18 p.m.

Respectfully submitted,

Julie A. Kenny
Clerk to the Board of Directors

APPROVED:

Gaylord Schaap:

Sukey Robb-Wilder:
Tim Lipinski:

Richard Holmer

Pip Marquez de la Plata
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NOTICE TO PERSONS WITH DISABILITIES: It is the policy of the Sweetwater Springs Water
District to offer its public programs, services and meetings in a manner that is readily accessible
to everyone, including those with disabilities. Upon request made at least 48 hours in advance of
the need for assistance, this Agenda will be made available in appropriate alternative formats to
persons with disabilities. This notice is in compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act (28

Sweetwater
Springs

www.sweetwatersprings.com

BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING
AGENDA

February 2, 2017, Regular Meeting
District Offices, 17081 Hwy. 116, Ste. B
Guerneville, California
6:30 p.m.

CFR, 35.102-35.104 ADA Title II).

Any person who has any questions concerning any agenda item may call the General Manager
or Assistant Clerk of the Board to make inquiry concerning the nature of the item described on
the agenda; copies of staff reports or other written documentation for each item of business are
on file in the District Office and available for public inspection. All items listed are for Board
discussion and action except for public comment items. In accordance with Section 5020.40 et
seq. of the District Policies & Procedures, each speaker should limit their comments on any
Agenda item to five (5) minutes or less. A maximum of twenty (20) minutes of public comment is
allowed for each subject matter on the Agenda, unless the Board President allows additional

time.

CALL TO ORDER (Est. time: 2 min.)

A. Board members Present
B. Board members Absent
C. Others in Attendance

CHANGES TO AGENDA and DECLARATIONS OF CONFLICT
(Est. time: 2 min.)

CONSENT CALENDAR (Est. time: 5 min.)

(Note: Items appearing on the Consent Calendar are deemed to be routine and
non-controversial. A Board member may request that any item be removed from
the Consent Calendar and added as an “Administrative” agenda item for the
purposes of discussing the item(s)).

A. Approval of the Minutes of the January 5, 2017 Board Meeting

B. Approval of Operations Warrants/Online payments/EFT payments





C. Receipt of Iltem(s) of Correspondence. Please note: Correspondence received
regarding an item on the Administrative Agenda is not itemized here, but will be
attached as back-up to that item in the Board packet and addressed with that
item during the Board meeting

1IV. PUBLIC COMMENT: The District invites public participation regarding the affairs of
the District. This time is made available for members of the public to address the Board
regarding matters which do not appear on the Agenda, but are related to business of the
District. Pursuant to the Brown Act, however, the Board of Directors may not conduct
discussions or take action on items presented under public comment. Board members may
ask questions of a speaker for purposes of clarification.

V. ADMINISTRATIVE

A. Discussion/Action re Resolution 17-02 Accepting the Final Audit for the Fiscal
Year Ending June 30, 2016

B. Discussion/Action re Draft Comment Letter and District Press Release Regarding
Fish Flow Project DEIR and the Sonoma County Water Agency's Petition to
Change Decision 1610. (Est. time 15 min.)

C. Discussion/Action re FY 2016-17 2nd Quarter Actual vs. Budgeted Operations
and Capital Expenditures and County Balances (Est. time 15 min.)

D. Discussion/Action re Mid-Year Budget Adjustment and Resolution 17-01,
Adopting the Revised FY 2016-17 Operating and Capital Budget (Est. time 15
min.)

E. Discussion/Action re Appointment of a FY 2017-18 Budget Committee and

Progress on the FY 17-18 Budget (Est. time 15 min.)

F. Discussion/Action re Review of the January Flood (Est. time 15 min.)

VI. GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT

VIl. BOARD MEMBERS’ ANNOUNCEMENTS

VIIl. CLOSED SESSION

IX. ITEMS FOR NEXT AGENDA

ADJOURN





Sweetwater Springs Water District Mission and Goals

The mission of the Sweetwater Springs Water District (SSWD) is to provide its
customers with quality water and service in an open, accountable, and cost-effective
manner and to manage District resources for the benefit of the community and
environment. The District provides water distribution and maintenance services to five
townships adjacent to the Russian River:

e Guerneville
Rio Nido
Guernewood Park
Villa Grande
Monte Rio

GOAL 1: IMPLEMENT SOUND FINANCIAL PRACTICES TO ENSURE EFFECTIVE
UTILIZATION OF DISTRICT RESOURCES

GOAL 2: PROVIDE RELIABLE AND HIGH QUALITY POTABLE WATER WITH
FACILITIES THAT ARE PROPERLY CONSTRUCTED, MANAGED AND MAINTAINED
TO ASSURE SYSTEM RELIABILITY

GOAL 3: HAVE UPDATED EMERGENCY PREPAREDNESS PLANS FOR ALL
REASONABLE, FORESEEABLE SITUATIONS

GOAL 4: DEVELOP AND MAINTAIN A QUALITY WORKFORCE

GOAL 5: PROVIDE EXCELLENT PUBLIC OUTREACH, INFORMATION AND
EDUCATION

GOAL 6: ENHANCE BOARD COMMUNICATIONS AND INFORMATION
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SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT

TO: Board of Directors AGENDA NO. V-A

FROM: Steve Mack, General Manager

Meeting Date: February 2, 2017

Subject: DISCUSSION/ACTION RE RESOLUTION 17-02, ACCEPTING THE FINAL
AUDIT FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDING JUNE 30, 2016

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Approve Resolution 17-02, Accepting the Final Audit for the Fiscal Year Ending June 30,
2016.

FISCAL IMPACT:
(Preparation of the FY 15-16 Audit cost $8,000.)

DISCUSSION:
Our FY 2015-16 Audit was conducted by Michael Celentano, CPA, the second audit of a
three-year contract with Mr. Celentano. He will be available by telephone during the
meeting to answer any questions you have about the Audit.

The Audit presents the District's financials using a partial accrual method of accounting,
which differs from the cash presentation staff prepares for the Board on a quarterly basis.

Staff recommends the Board approve Resolution 17-02, Accepting the Final Audit for the
Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2016.





Resolution No. 17-02

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE
SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT ACCEPTING THE FINAL
AUDIT FOR THE FI1scAL YEAR ENDING JUNE 30, 2016

WHEREAS, the Sweetwater Springs Water District is required to have
annual audits performed relative to the spending of public funds; and

WHEREAS, Michael Celentano, CPA provides said auditing service and
is under contract with the District to perform such audits.

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the Board of Directors of
the Sweetwater Springs Water District has reviewed the audit as prepared by
Michael Celentano, CPA for the year ending June 30, 2016, and accepts the
information contained therein.

I hereby certify that the foregoing is a full, true, and correct copy of a
Resolution duly and regularly adopted and passed by the Board of Directors
of the SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT, Sonoma County, California,
at a meeting held on February 2, 2017, by the following vote.

Director Aye No

Sukey Robb-Wilder

Tim Lipinski

Rich Holmer

Gaylord Schaap

Pip Marquez de la Plata

Sukey Robb-Wilder
President of the Board of Directors

Attest: Julie A. Kenny
Clerk of the Board of Directors





MICHAEL A. CELENTANO
Certified Public Accountant
PO Box 206
530-629-3015 Willow Creek Ca 95573 maccpa@pacific.net

To the Management and
The Board of Directors of
Sweetwater Springs Water District

In planning and performing my audit of the financial statements of the business-type activities of Sweetwater
Springs Water District as of and for the year ended June 30, 2016, in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America, I considered Sweetwater Springs Water District

's internal control over financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for designing audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing my opinion on the financial statements, but not for
the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Sweetwater Springs Water District’s internal
control. Accordingly, | do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Sweetwater Springs Water District’s
internal control,

My consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the preceding paragraph and was not
designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or significant
deficiencies and, therefore, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that were not identified.
However, as discussed below, 1 identified certain deficiencies in internal control that I consider to be significant
deficiencies.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency or a combination of deficiencies in internal
control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s financial statements
will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. [ did not identify any deficiencies in internal
control that [ consider to be material weaknesses.

A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe
than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance. [ consider
the following deficiency in Sweetwater Springs Water District’s internal to be significant deficiency:

District Structure

The size of the District’s accounting and administrative staff precludes certain internal controls that would be
preferred if the office staff were large enough to provide optimum segregation of duties. This situation dictates
that the Board of Directors remains involved in the financial affairs of the District to provide oversight and
independent review functions.

This communication is intended solely for the information and use of management, Board of Directors, and others
within the organization, and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified
parties,

Very truly yours,

Michael A Celentano
Certified Public Accountant

December 14, 2016





MICHAEL A. CELENTANO
Certified Public Accountant
PO Box 206
530-629-3015 Willow Creek Ca 95573 maccpa@pacific.net

To the Management and
The Board of Directors of
Sweetwater Springs Water District

I have audited the financial statements of the business-type activities of Sweetwater Springs Water District for the
year ended June 30, 2016. Professional standards require that I provide you with information about my
responsibilities under generally accepted auditing standards, as well as certain information related to the planned
scope and timing of my audit. I have communicated such information in my letter to you dated December 14,
2016. Professional standards also require that 1 communicate to you the following information related to my audit.

Significant Audit Findings

Qualitative Aspects of Accounting Practices

Management is responsible for the selection and use of appropriate accounting policies. The significant

accounting policies used by Sweetwater Springs Water District are described in Note 1 to the financial statements,
No new accounting policies were adopted and the application of existing policies was not changed during the vear.
I noted no transactions entered into by the governmental unit during the year for which there is a lack of
authoritative guidance or consensus. All significant transactions have been recognized in the financial statements
in the proper period.

Accounting estimates are an integral part of the financial statements prepared by management and are based on
management’s knowledge and experience about past and current events and assumptions about future events.
Certain accounting estimates are particularly sensitive because of their significance to the financial statements and
because of the possibility that future events affecting them may differ significantly from those expected. The most
sensitive estimate affecting the District’s financial statements was:

Management’s estimate of the other postemployment benefits payable and pension liabilities are
based on industry guidelines and actuarial tables. I evaluated the key factors and assumptions
used to develop these other postemployment benefits payable and pension liabilities in
determining that it is reasonable in relationship to the financial statements taken as a whole

The financial statement disclosures are neutral, consistent, and clear.

Difficulties Encountered in Performing the Audit

I encountered no significant difficulties in dealing with management in performing and completing my audit.
Corrected and Uncorrected Missiatements

Professional standards require me to accumulate all known and likely misstatements identified during the audit,
other than those that are clearly trivial, and communicate them to the appropriate level of management,
Management has corrected all such misstatements. In addition, none of the misstatements detected as a result of
audit procedures and corrected by management were material, either individually or in the aggregate, to each
opinien unit’s financial statements taken as a whole.





Disagreements with Management

For purposes of this letter, a disagreement with management is a financial accounting, reporting, or auditing
matter, whether or not resolved to my satisfaction, that could be significant to the financial statements or the
auditor’s report. { am pleased to report that no such disagreements arose during the course of my audit.

Management Representations

I have requested certain representations from management that are included in the management representation
letter dated December 14, 2016,

Management Consultations with Other Independent dccountants

In some cases, management may decide to consult with other accountants about auditing and accounting matters,
similar to obtaining a “second opinion” on certain situations. If a consultation involves application of an
accounting principle to the governmental unit’s financial statements or a determination of the type of auditor’s
opinion that may be expressed on those statements, my professional standards require the consulting accountant to
check with me to determine that the consultant has all the relevant facts. To my knowledge, there were no such
consultations with other accountants,

Other Audit Findings or Issues

[ gencrally discuss a variety of matters, including the application of accounting principles and auditing standards,
with management each year prior to retention as the governmental unit’s auditors. However, these discussions
occurred in the normal course of my professional relationship and my responses were not a condition to my
retention.

Other Matters

With respect to the supplementary information accompanying the financial statements, I made certain inguiries of
management and evaluated the form, content, and methods of preparing the information to determine that the
information complies with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, the method
of preparing it has not changed from the prior period, and the information is appropriate and complete in relation
to my audit of the financial statements. | compared and reconciled the supplementary information to the
underlying accounting records used to prepare the financial statements or to the financial statements themselves,

This information is intended solely for the use of management and the Board of Directors of Sweetwater Springs
Water District and is not intended to be, and should not be, used by anyone other than these specified parties.

Very truly yours,

Michael A Celentano
Certified Public Accountant

December i4, 2016
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MICHAEL A. CELENTANO
Certified Public Accountant
PO Box 206
530-629-3015 Willow Creek Ca 95573 magccpal@pacific.net

Board of Directors
Sweetwater Springs Water District
Guerneville, California

Independent Auditor's Report

I have audited the accompanying financial statements of the business-type activities of Sweetwater Springs
Water District as of and for the year ended June 30, 2016 and the related notes to the financial statements,
which collectively comprise the District’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of thege financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due 10 fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

My responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on my audit. I conducted my
audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. Those
standards require that I plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements are free from material misstatement,

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making
those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair
presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control. Accordingly, I express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management,
as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

[ behieve that the audit evidence [ have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my
audit opinions,

Opinions

In my opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
respective financial position of the business-type activities of Sweetwater Springs Water District as of June
30, 2016 and the respective changes in financial position and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the
years then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America.





Other Matters

Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management’s
discussion and analysis on pages 3-9 be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such
information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental
Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the
basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. I have applied
certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the
methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with management’s
responses to my inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge I obtained during my audit
of the basic financial statements. I do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information
because the limited procedures do not provide me with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide
any assurance,

Michael A Celentano

Certified Public Accountant

December 14, 2016





Management Discussion & Analysis
{(Unaudited)

Management has prepared this financial overview of the activities of the Sweetwater Springs Water
District for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2016. It serves as an introduction to the financial statements
contained in the Audit Report and a summary of major activities of the District for the fiscal year. Much of
the analysis is comparative to last year's activity.

The Discussion begins with a selection of financial activities that management considers worthy of special
note for FY 2015-16. The condensed financial statements that follow provide a complete financial
summary of the Audit Report. Following the financial statements are additional detsils on capital
spending, District debt and future plans of the District.

SELECTED FINANCIAL ACTiV!T!ES IN 2015 16

Net income (change in Net POSI‘I‘.!OH) Is more than last year, Net income for the year before
depreciation expense was $1,304,528 compared tcn 31, 106 6-44 m FY 2014 15. After deprematlon the
Dlstrsct's net posmon was $543 0?2 (p 7). DR : _ _

Surp!us cash transferred to CiRF was $320 OOO the same amount that was budgeted (p. 10}

District reserves are dOWn Dlstnct funds avasiable for capltal 1mprovement pro;ects were $1, 051 606 at
FYE 18, compared to $1,774, 258 at FYE 2015 (p. 9}

Net pension hab:hty (a non-cash expense} decreased from a total of $734,1158 at FYE 2015 to a total of
$560,776 at FYE 2016. The District began accounting for future unfunded pension liability in FY 2014-15
in accordance with GASB 68. "Catching up" on this liabiity s:gmﬁcantfy impacted the District’s net
position for that FY 2014-15. Beginning in FY 2015-18, net pension habtftty w:Ei only lmpac:t net poesition o
the extent that there are changes to th;s Itablhty from the prlor year

Se!ected revenues and expenses o B ' o
. _ SR ZFY2015 16_ _'FY_2014-15
Water Sales: . $2,258,206  $2,202,259

Operatmg Expenses {(before depreciation): 51,4486, 138 $1,614,952
-, .- Capital Improvement Projects: © 51,149,979 - $1.036,829
Debt Payments (prmctpal * mteresi): ' -$1,028,326  $970,803

Other Notes for FY 20‘15 16

(1) USDA chef At FYE the t)istnct has applaed bui not yet been approved for additiona! bond
fundmg from USDA totalling $2,579,000 at: a2 25% mterest rate ThIS po‘ientlai fundmg has not been
included in fong range budget forecasts, '

Sweetwater Springs Water District 3
Management Discussion & Analysis
FY 201518






ll. BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Financiat Statements of the District report information about the District using accounting methods
similar to those used by private sector companies. These statements offer short- and long-term financial
information about its activities. The two statements contained in this Management's Discussion and
Analysis are condensed versions of the statements in the Audit Report:

The Statement of Net Position is comparable (o a Balance Sheet. It includes all of the District's assets
and liabilities and provides information about the nature and amounts of investments in resources
(assets} and the obligations of the District’s creditors (liabilities). 1 also provides the basis for computing
rate of return, evaluating the capital structure of the District, and assessing the liquidity and financial
flexibility of the District.

All of the current fiscal year's revenues and expenses are accounted for in the Statement of Revenues.
Expenses, and Changes in Net Position, comparable to an Income Statement. This statement measures
the success of the District's operations over the past fiscal year and can be used to determine the
District’s creditworthiness and whether the District has successfully recovered ali its costs through its user
fees and other charges.

Not included in this Management's Discussion and Analysis but required in the Audit report is the
Statement of Cash Flows. The primary purpose of this statement is to provide information about the
District’'s cash receipts and cash payments during the reporting period. It provides answers to such
questions as where did cash come from, what was cash used for, and what was the change in cash
balance during the reporting period.

Sweelwater Springs Water District 4
Management Discussion & Analysis
FY 2015-16





STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

A summary of the District's Statement of Net Position in FY 2015-16 compared to FY 2014-15 is
presented in Table 1 below. Generally, an increase in the Disirict's net position is a good indicator of
whether its financial health is improving or deteriorating. The District's net position increased by
$543,071 t0 $11,755,136 at FYE 2016, up from $11,212,065 at FYE 2015, largely due to a decrease in
pension liability and a decrease in outstanding debt that more than offset decreases to cash on hand.

Table 1
Condensed Statement of Net Position

FYE 2016 FYE 2015 % Change % Change

Cash 2,686,459 3,421,874 (735,415) -21.5%
Capital Assets 21,152,170 20,695,114 457,066 2.2%
Cther Assets 405,876 384,944 20,932 5.4%

Total Assets 24,244,505 24,501,932 {257 .427) -1 1%

Bond & Loan principai debt

cutstanding 11,660,156 12,263,064 {602 ,908) -4.8%
Other long-term liabilities 633,500 802,846 (169,346) “21.1%
Other short-term liabilities 195,713 223 957 (28,244} -12.6%

Total Liabilities 12,489,359 13,289,867 (800,498} -6.0%

Net investment in capital

assets 9,492,014 8,432,050 1,059,984 12.6%
Restricted G 15,123 {15,123) -100.0%
Unrestricted 2,263,122 2,764,892 {501,770) -18.1%
Total Net Position 11,755,136 11,212,065 543,071 4.8%
Sweetwater Springs Water District 5
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STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION

The Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position provides additional information
concerning this year's revenues and expenses that impacted net position. Table 2 below compares the
District's Staterment of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position in FY 2015-16 versus FY
2014-15.

FYE 2016 EYE 2015 $ Changs % Change
Waler Sales 2,258,205 2,202,259 55,946 2.5%
Property Tax Assessment (flat charge} 774,640 812,551 (37,911} -4, 7%
Non-Operating Revenues 143,240 141,679 1,561 1.1%
Total Revenues 3,176,085 3,156,488 19,597 0.6%
Operating Expenses:
Salaries & Benefits 580,352 1,008,822 {28,430} -2.8%
Services & Supplies 465,746 606,130 (140,384) -23.2%
Other 0 -
Total Operating Expenses 1,446,138 1,614,952 {168,814) -10.5%
Neon-Operating Expenses:
Interest 425,419 433,658 (8,239) -1.8%
Cther 0 1,234 (1,234) 0.0%
Total Non-Operating Expenses 425419 434,892 {8,473} -2.2%
Total Expenses 1,871,557 2,049,844 {178,287} -B.7%
income before Other Hems and
Depreciation Expense 1,304,528 1,106,644 197,884 17.8%
Other income 0 0 0 -
Other expense a (792,133) 792,133 0.0%
Depreciation Expense {761,456) (720,630) (40,8283 5.7%
Change in Net Position {Net income) 543,072 {406,119) 849,191 -233.7%

Income before Other items and Depreciation Expense was $197,884 more than last fiscal year,

Total revenues were $3,176,0885, slightly higher ($19,597) than last year. Water Sales were up from last
year. Asinrecent years, the District increase rates by 3%, even as District customers continued to
conserve. Actual water usage was down again in FY 2015-16. Flat charge revenue, collected via
property fax bills, is expected to remain constant from year fo year at around $750,000. This year they
exceeded that amount by $24,640. Non-operating revenues - (1} interest income; (2) rent received from
celi tower tenants on the District's Mt. Jackson property; and (3) construction of new services during the
fiscal year was about the same as last year, totalling $143,240.

On the expense side, total expenses decreased by $178,287, or 8.7%, mostly due to a decrease in
Services & Supplies. This is not unusuat — repairs to the District's distribution system can vary widely
from year to year.

income after accounting for “"Other ltems” (Change in Net Position) was $543,072, compared to a
foss of $406,118 in FY 2014-15. Last year marked the first year the District was required to account for
unfunded future pension liability. Setting up this (non-cash) liability created in FY 2014-15 resulted in a
one-time "other expense" of $792,133. Depreciation Expense, another non-cash expense, continues to
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rise each year as the District continues with annual capital improvements that depreciate over a 40-year

life.

Ill. CAPITAL SPENDING

In FY 2015-16, the District spent $1,178,919 on construction projects, broken down as follows:

. : . Amount spent FY | % complete at FYE
Project Project Description 201516 5016

Replace approximately 3,900 If of 100%
existing mainline and 75 services - )

CIP 2018 along Canyon 1 Rd., Memory Ln,, $1,026,584 éfflrgjgftstgie)ll.
and Memory Park Rd. in Rio Nido T
Renlace approximately 3,500 if of
existing main and 70 services on Oid
River Road at Morningside east to 1% complete

CiP 2017 the eastern section of Foothill Drive. $123,385 {Project totak:
includes Orchard Road and River $1,339,884)
Road on the river side of the road.
Feeds Rio Nido.

Egr“(’j:gfﬁg (Various site improvements) $28.940 N/A

$1,178,819

In addition to these capital projects, the District spent a total of $36,265 on a new truck, a generator, and
two laptops. Also, $36,042 was spent on various in-house large maintenance projects.

V. DISTRICT DEBT/SQURCES OF DEBT REPAYMENT

At the beginning of FY 2015-18, the District owed a total of $12,263,064 in bond debt, state loans, and a
private placement ioan. During the year the District made $602,807 in principal payments.

The table below summarizes activity on the bonds and loans in FY 2015-16:

DEBT TYPE ORIGINAL  PRINCIPALOWED  SECIPAL — priNciPAL
DEBTTYPE PRINCIPAL JULY 1.2015 2% OWED FYE 2016
USDAGO. s1647.875(2014)  $1,647.875 $25,147 $1,622,728
g{fﬁg:] One 7,993,000 (2013)* $7,253,000 $312,000 $6,941,000
State Loans  $3,013,500 (1996) $1,049.628 $140,120 $909,508
Private
P Loan $3:000,000 (2008) $2,312,561 $125,640 $2,186,921
$12,263,064 $602,907 $11,660,157
Sweetwater Springs Water District 7
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With interest, actual payments on District bond and loan debt were $1,028,326. The District allocates
revenue from flat charges, the CDR' portion of the Water Sales revenue, and capial interest to pay for
annual principal and interest on debt, itemized for FY 2015-16 as shown below;

Flat Charges: 3774.640
CDR Revenue: $261,565
Capital interest: $8,367

Total: $1,044,572

The surplus (shortfall) from these sources of revenue — $16,246 surplus in FY 2015-16 — is added to
{subtracted from) District reserves.

V. DISTRICT RESERVES AND RESERVES ABOVE POLICY

The District adopted a Reserve Policy in 2009 that calls for leaving a designated amount of District funds
in reserve for emergencies. All other District funds are considered “reserves above policy” and available
for spending/capital improvement projects. At fiscal year end, District funds at the County totalled
$2,430,883.03. District policy reserves were $1,207,907, leaving $1,051,606° available for spending
("reserves above policy”). Below is a history of the District's reserves above policy since the adoption of
the District Reserve Policy:

Fiscal Year End 2010.  $3,238,830
Fiscal Year End 2011: $4,023,083
Fiscal Year End 2012: $3,475,569
Fiscal Year £nd 2013.  $3,206,882
Fiscal Year End 2014: $2,507,800
Fiscal Year End 20158; $1,774 258
Fiscal Year End 2016: $1,051,608

District reserves above policy are going down, as anticipated. The District's long range budget forecasts
depleting & portion of District reserves above policy each year to accomplish the projects of the 2016-23
Capital Improvement Program needed to get the water system to an acceptable standard.

VI. ECONOMIC FACTORS, PROJECTED CAPITAL EXPENDITURES/SOURCES OF
FUNDING

The bulk of the District’s income is tied to water sales and flat charge revenue, both unaffected in any
major way by econamic events. District reserves are conservatively managed via the County of Sonoma's
investment pool. Interest rates remain low, but invested principal remains untouched and the loss in
interest revenue is manageable,

Water sales revenue has been impacted from state and local water conservation compaigns triggered in
part by a multi-year drought. The loss of revenue due to conservation has also been manageable, due to
the District's water rate structure that provides revenue stability regardiess of water use.

The District's 2016-23 Capital Improvement Program identifies over $5.6 million of addmonai capital
projects that still need to be completed to bring District facilities to an acceptable standard.® According o
the District's long-term budget annual capital construction costs will average about $875,000. The
District's capital construction is funded from four sources:

* ¢DR staﬁds for "Capitaf Debt Reduction®.
2 Source 4™ Quarter Actual vs. Budgeted report.
* Source: 2016-23 Capital improvement Program
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Surplus revenue. The District has a pian to increase surplus revenue to
$500,000 annually. in FY 2015-16 it was budgeted at $320,000.

» Grants. The District is not anticipating any grant revenue as of FYE.

Y

Loan proceeds. The District's indebtedness was approximately $11.6 million at
the end of FY 2015-16. At FYE the District has applied for $2,578,000 in
additional bond indebtedness through USDA at a rate of 2.25%.

» Reserves. Reserves available for capital spending ("reserves above policy")
were at $1,051,606 at FYE 2018.

For this period {(2016-23), the District's longterm budget calls for depleting District reserves above policy.
Once reserves above policy are depleted - projected to be around FY 2019-23, the District's plan calls for
a shift to a sustainable capital program which consists of smailer projects that can be funded fully with
District surpluses and/or years in which no capital projects are scheduled.

MORE ABOUT DISTRICT SURPLUS REVENUES

The District is in the midst of a long-term budget plan to increase District surplus revenues to a
sustainable $500,000 annually. * The plan contemplates nine years of 3% water increases. FY 2015-18
was the fifth year of this plan. Below is a table of budgeted operating surpluses from recent years (acutal
surpluses may vary}:

Year Year of -year Budgeted
Budget Plan (3% Operating Surpius
water increase
each yearn)

F 2010-11 N/A $240,000

FY 2011-12 1of9 $240,000

FY 2012-13 20f9 $220,000

FY 2013-14 Jo0f8 $390,000

FY 2014-15 40f9 $260,000

FY 2015-16 50f8 $320,000

FY 2016-17 gofg $330,000

As discussed above, budgeted operating surpluses have been somewhat impacted by successful water
conservation efforts on the part of state and local governments triggered in part by ongoing drought.

Vi. REQUEST FOR INFORMATION

This financial report is designed to provide our customers and creditors with a general overview of the
district’s finances and to demonstrate the district's accountability for the money it receives. If you have
questions about this report or need additional financial information, contact the Sweetwater Springs Water
District at P.O. Box 48, Guerneville, California, 95446.

" "Sustainable Funding for Needed Capital Improvements”, dated Aprit 18, 2011.
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SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and investments
Accounts receivable
Flat charges receivables
Inventory
Prepaid expenses
TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS

NONCURRENT ASSETS
Land
Construction in progress
Buildings and improvements
Machinery and equipment
Less-accumulated depreciation
TOTAL CAPITAL ASSETS, NET

OTHER NONCURRENT ASSETS
Restricted cash and investments

June 36, 2016 and 2015

TOTAL OTHER NONCURRENT ASSETS

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Accounts payable
Accrued wages
Accrued interest
Customer deposits
Road maintenance obligations
Current portion of long term debt
TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES

DEFERRED INFLOWS
Pension expense

TOTAL DEFERRED INFLOWS

LONG TERM LIABILITIES
Compensated absences
Net pension liability
General obligation bonds payable

California safe drinking water bonds payabie

Citizens business bank (COP) payable
Other postemployment benefits payable
TOTAL LONG TERM LIABILITIES

TOTAL LIABILITIES

NET POSITION
Net Investiment in capital assets
Unrestricted
TOTAL NET POSITION

June 30, 2016

June 30, 2015

$ 950,265 1,682,310
300,951 279,177
42,530 43,372
36,395 56,395
6,000 6,000
1,356,141 2,067,254
143,053 143,053
123,395 64,917
29,721,701 28,601,260
577,389 602,907
{9,413,368) {8,717,023)
21,152,170 20,695,114
1,736,194 1,739,564
1,736,194 1,739,564
24,244 305 24,501,932
9,431 6,685
2,852 23,660
157,724 165,358
15,576 13,131
10,130 15,123
622,829 602,908
818,542 826,865
60,072 134,375
60,672 154,375
72,953 68,628
500,704 579,740
3,216,984 8,563,728
763,102 909,508
2,055,241 2,186,920
(229) 103
11,610,755 12,308,627
12,489,369 13,289,867
9,492,014 8,432,050
2,263,122 2,780,015
$ 11,755,136 11,212,065

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements
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SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2016 and 2015

Totals Totals
June 30, 2016 June 30, 2015

Operating Revenues

Charges for services 5 2,258,205 $ 2,202,259
Total Operating Revenues 2,258,205 2,202,259
Operating Expenses
Salaries and employee benefits 980,392 1,008,822
Service and supplies 465,746 607,364
Depreciation 761,456 720,630
Total Operating Expenses 2,207,594 2,336,816
Operating Income {1.0ss) 50,611 {134,557)
Non-Operating Revenues (Expenses)
Interest income 17,518 18,757
Rents 108,747 78,456
Flat charges 774,640 812,550
Other non-operating revenue 16,975 44,466
Interest expense (425 419) (433.658)
Total Non-Operating Revenues (Expenses) 492,461 520,571
Net Income (Loss) Before Capital Contributions 343,072 386,014

Capital Contributions
Capital grants

Total Capital Contributions

Change in Net Position 543,072 386,014
Total Net Position, Beginning of Fiscal Year 11,212,064 11,618,183
Prior Period Adjustment for GASR 68 Net Pension Liability - (792,133}
Total Net Position, Beginning of Fiscal Year, Restated 11,212,064 10,826,050
Total Net Position, End of Fiscal Year $ 11,755,136 $ 11,212,064

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements
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SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2016 and 2015

Totals
June 30, 2016

Totals
June 34, 2015

Cash Flows From Operating Activities
Cash received from customers S
Payments to suppliers for goods and services
Payments to employees and related itenis

Net cash flows provided by operating activities

Cash Flows From Capital and Related Financing Activities
Acquisition of capital assets
Proceeds from issuance of long term debt
Payment on long term debt
Net change in pension liability
Interest payments

2,236,431 S 2,223,831
(461,555) (552,989)
(1,001,200) (1,120,141)
773,676 550,701
(1,218,512) (1,102,529
(602,908) (556,007)
(173,339)
(433,053) (414,686)

Net cash flows (used) by capital and related financing activities

(2,427.812)

(2,073,222)

Cash Flows From Non-Capital and Related Financing Activities

Flat charges 775,48} 827,994
Miscellaneous non-operating revenues 16,975 44,466
Net cash provided by non-capital and relateq financing activities 762,456 872,460
Cash Flows From Investing Activilies
Rents 108,747 78,456
Interest income 17,518 18,757
Net cash flows provided by investing activities 126,265 97,213
Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Investments (735,415) (552,848
Cash and Investments, Beginning of Fiscal Year 3,421,874 3.974,722
Cash and Investments, End of Fiscal Year 3 2,686,459 % 3,421,874
Reconciliation of Cash and Investments to Amounts
Reported on the Statement of Net Position:
Cash and investments g 1,023,070 Y 1,682,310
Restricted cash and investments 1,663,389 1,739,564
5 2,686,439 h 3,421,874
Supplemental Disclosures:
Interest expense during the fiscal year $ 425419 % 433,658
Interest eapitalized during the fiscal year $ - $ -
{continued)

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements
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SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT
COMPARATIVE STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2016 and 2015

(Continned)
Totals Totals
June 36, 2016 June 30, 2015
Reconciliation of Operating Income (Loss) to Net Cash
Provided by Operations:
Operating income (loss) ) 50,611 3 (134,557}
Adjustments to Reconcile Operating Income (Loss) to Net Cash Provided
by Operating Activities:
Depreciation 761,456 720,630
Salaries and employee benefits {58,017
(Increase) Decrease in Qperating Assels:
Accoums receivable (21,774) 21,641
Inventory
Prepaid expenses (6,000
Increase (Decrease) in Operating Liabilities:
Accounts payable 2,746 (8,651)
Accrued wages (20,808) 4,406
Compensated absences 4,325 9,828
Customer deposits payable 2,445 69
Road maintenance obligations (4,993) 5,008
Other postemployment benefits payable {332) {3,518)
Total Adjustments 723,065 685,258
Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities $ 773,676 % 550,701

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements
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SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT
Notes to Basic Financial Statements
June 30, 2016

Note 1: Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

A. Reporting Entity

The Sweetwater Springs Water District (District) was formed on December 6, 1988 with Resolution #88-2184
through an election under Section 30290 of the California State Water Code. The District supplies water services
to residential and commercial users, and provides for connections to and the servicing of the delivering system.
The District’s Board of Directors has the responsibility of overseeing the financial activities of the District.

The District accounting policies conform to accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America as applicable to governments, in accordance with the uniform system of accounts for water utility
special enterprise districts as prescribed by the State Controller in compliance with the government code of the
State of California.

3. Basis of Accounting

The District follows the accrual basis of accounting. The District's policy is to record all assets, liabilities, revenues,
and expenses on the accrual basis of accounting and the flow of economic resources measurement focus. Under this
method, revenue is recognized when earned and expenses are recognized when the related liability is incurred. In
these funds, receivables have been recorded as revenue and provisions have been made for uncollectible amounts,

C. Proprietary Fund Accounting
The District has one fund which is considered a proprietary fund,

Proprietary Fund Financial Statements inctude a Statement of Net Position, a Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and
Changes in Net Position, and a Statement of Cash Flows.

In accordance with GASB Statement No. 20 and No. 62, the District has opted to apply all applicable GASB
pronouncements and all Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) Statements and Interpretations,
Accounting Principles Board (APB) Opinions, and Accounting Research Bulletins (ARB) issued on or before
November 30, 1989, unless they conflict with or contradict GASB pronouncements.

Operating revenues in the proprietary fund are those revenues that are generated from the primary operations of
the fund. All other revenues are reported as non-operating revenues. Operating expenses are those expenses that
are essential to the primary operation of the fund. All other expenses are reported as non-operating expenses.

D. Budgetary Reporting

The annual budget is prepared in accordance with the basis of accounting utilized by the District. The budget is not

legally required and therefore budget to actual information has not been presented, either as a statement or required
or other supplementary information.
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SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT
Notes to Basic Financial Statemenis
June 30, 2016

Note 1: Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

I£. Receivables

Bad debts associated with accounts receivable for services are tracked each year by staff, but have been deemed
immaterial. Other receivables, if any, are shown at the anticipated recoverable amount, unless otherwise noted.

F. Flat Charges Receivable

Flat charges receivable represent direct charges owed to the District by property owners.

G. Inventories

Inventory consists primarily of water meters, water pipes, valves and fittings. Inventory is valued at estimated cost.
H. Capital Assets

Property, plant, and equipment are recorded at cost or estimated historical cost if actual cost is not available.
Contributed assets are recorded at their fair value at the time of transfer to the District. Assets with a value of $1,000
or less are expensed in the years acquired.

Depreciation is recorded vsing the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the assets. Depreciation is
recorded as an expense in the Statement of Activities, with accumulated depreciation reflected in the Statement of
Net Position. The range of estimated useful lives are as follows:

Water system 40 years
Leasehold improvements 7 years
Equipment 3-5 vears

I, Vacation and Sick Leave

Vacation pay is accrued by the District in the period earned. At June 30, 2015 and 2014, accrued vacation pay
amounted to $72,953 and $68.628 respectively.

J. Use of Estimafes

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America as prescribed by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board {GASB) and the American
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (AICPA) requires management to make estimates and assumptions that
affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of
the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual
results could differ from those estimates.

L. New Accounting Pronouncement

The District has implemented the requirements of Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB)
Statement Nos. 68, and 71 during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2015.
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SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT
Notes to Basie Financial Statements
June 30, 2016

Note 1: Sunmmary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Governmenial Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 68 and 71

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2013, the District implemented Governmental Accounting Standards
Board (GASB) Statement No. 68, “Accounting and Financial Reporting of Pension Plans.” and Statement
71 * Pension Transition for Contributions Made Subsequent to the Measurement Date, an amendment to
GASB 68" These Statements are effective for periods beginning afier June 15, 2014. These Statements
will improve the decision-usefulness of information in emplover and governmental nonemployer
contributing entity financial reports and will enhance its value for assessing accountability and
interperiod equity by requiring recognition of the entire net pension liability and a more comprehensive
measure of pension expense. Decision-usefulness and accountability also will be enhanced through new
note disclosures and required supplementary information.

Note 2: Cash and Investments

The cash and investments are classified in the financial statements as shown below, based on whether or not their
use is restricted under the terms of District debt instruments or District agreements.

The District's cash and investments are comprised of the following at June 30, 2016:

Unrestricted Restricted Totals
Cash on hand 3 500 3 - 3 500
Cash in bank 140,592 81,443 222,037
Cash and investments 809,173 1,654,749 2,463,922
Total Cash and Investments $ 950,265 $ 1,736,194 $ 2,686,439

Statement of Net Position:
Cash and investments $ 950,265
Restricted cash and investments 1,736,194

Total 3 2,686,439

Investments Authorized by the California Government Code and the District’s Investment Policy

The table below identifies the investment types that are authorized for the Sweetwater Springs Water District
(District) by the California Government Code (or the District’s investment policy, where more restrictive). The table
also identifies certain provisions of the California Government Code (or the District’s investment policy, where
more restrictive) that address interest rate risk, credit risk, and concentration of risk. This table does not address
investments of debt proceeds held by bond trustee that are governed by the provisions of debt agreements of the
District, rather than the general provisions of the California Government Code or the Disirict’s investment policy.
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 SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT
Notes to Basic Financial Statements
June 30, 2016

Note 2: Cash and Investments (Continued)

Investments Authorized by the California Government Code and the District’s Investment Policy (Continued)

Maximum Maximum
Maximum Percentage Investment
Authorized Investiment Type Maturity of Portfolio in One Issuer

Local Agency Bonds 5 years None None
U.S. Treasury Obligations 3 years None None
State of California Obligations 5 years None None
CA Local Agency Obligations 3 years None None
.S, Apencies 5 years None None
Bankers' Acceptances 180 days 40% 30%
Commercial Paper - Selected Agencies 270 days 25% 10%
Commercial Paper - Other Agencies 270 days 40% 10%
Negotiable Certificates of Deposit S years 30% None
Repurchase Agreements 1 year None None
Reverse Repurchase Apreements & 20 % of the base

Securities Lending Agreements 92 days value of the portfolio None
Mediwm-Term Notes 5 years 30% None
Mutual Funds N/A 20% 10%
Money Market Mutual Funds N/A 20% None
Collateralized Bank Deposits 5 years None None
Mortgage Pass-Through Securities 5 years 20% None
Time Deposits S years None None
County Pooled Investment Funds N/A None None
L.ocal Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) N/A None 5 50 Million

Disclosures Relating to lnterest Rate Risk

Interest vate risk is the risk that changes in market interest rates will adversely affect the fair value of an investment,
Generally, the longer the maturity of an investment, the greater the sensitivity of its fair value to changes in the
market interest rates. The District manages its exposure to interest rate risk by investing a majority of its cash and
investments in the County Pooled Investment Fund.,

Information about the sensitivity of the fair values of the District’s investments to market interest rate fluctuations is
provided by the following table that shows the distribution of the District’s investments by maturity:

Investment Type Totals or Less Months Months Months  Months  Months
County Pooled Investment Fund _ § 2463,922 § 2469922 § - 3 - $ - 5 - § -
32463922 $ 2469922 § - $ - s - 5 - 3 -
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SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT
Notes to Basic Financial Statements
June 30, 2016

Note 2: Cash and Investments (Continued)

Disclosures Relating to Credit Risk

Generally, credit risk is the risk that an issuer of an investment will not fulfill its obligation to the holder of the
mvestment.  This is measured by the assignment of rating by a nationally recognized statistical rating
organization. Presented below is the minimum rating required by the California Government Code and the
District’s investment policy, and the actual rating as of fiscal year end for each investment type.

Investment Type Amount Rating  Discloswre  AAA AA A Rated
County Pooled lavestment Fund  § 2,463,922 N/A 3 - ;3 - $ - $ - $ 2,463,922
Total $ 2,463,922 3 - $ - - $ - § 2,463,922

Concentration of Credit Risk

The investment policy of the District contains no limitations on the amount that can be invested in any one issuer
beyond that stipulated by the Califormia Government Code. There are no investments that represent 5% or mote
of total District investments (other than Sonoma County Investment Pool).

Custodial Credit Risk

Custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk that, in the event of the failure of a depository financial institution, a
government will not be able to recover its deposits or will not be able to recover collateral securities that are in
the possession of an outside party. The California Government Code and the District’s investment policy do not
contain legal or policy requirements that would limit the exposure to custodial credit risk for deposits, other than
the following provision for deposits: The California Government Code requires that a financial institution secure
deposits made by state or tocal governmental units by pledging securities in an undivided collateral pool held by
a depository regulated under state law (unless so waived by the governmental unit). The fair value of the pledged
securities in the collateral pool must equal at least 110% of the total amount deposited by the public agencies,
California law also allows financial institutions to secure the District’s deposits by pledging first trust deed
mortgage notes having a value of 150% of the secured public deposits.

As of June 30, 2016, the District’s deposits with financial institutions were not in excess of federal depository
insurance limits.

The custodiai credit risk for inveszments is the risk that, in the event of the failure of the counterparty (e.g.,
broker-dealer) to a transaction, a government will not be able to recover the value of its investment or collateral
securities that are in the possession of another party. The California Government Code and the District’s
investment policy do not contain legal or policy requirements that would limit the exposure to custodial credit
risk for investments. With respect to investments, custodial credit risk generally applies only to direct
investments in marketable securities. Custodial credit risk does not apply to a local government’s indirect
investment in securities through the use of mutual funds or government investment pools (such as the Sonoma
County Investment Pool).
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SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT
Notes to Basic Financial Statements

Note 3; Capital Assets

June 30, 2016

Capital asset activity for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2016, was as follows:

Capital assets, not being depreciated:
Land
Construction in progress

Total capital assets, not being depreciated

Capital Assets, being depreciated:
Building and improvements
Machinery and equipment

Total capital assets, being depreciated

Accumulated depreciation:
Building and improvements
Machinery and equipment

Total accumulated depreciation
Total depreciable assets, net
Total capital assets, net

Batance at Balance at
July 1, 2015 Additions Deletions Transfers June 30, 2016
3 143,055 & - $ - 3 - $ 143,053
64,917 123,395 (64.917) 123,395
267970 123,395 {64,917} 266,448
28,601,260 1,120,441 29.721,701
602,907 39,393 (63,111) 377,389
29204, 167 1,160,034 {65,111) 30,299,090
(8,192,247) (741,474) (8.933,721)
{524,776} {19,982) 65,111 {479,647}
(8,717,023} (761,456) 65,111 (9.413,368)
20,487 144 398,578 20,885,722
$ 20695114 § 321973 % - $ G497 % 21,152,170

Depreciation expense of $761,456 was incurred and recorded as an operating expense for June 30, 2016.

Note 4: Long-Term Debt

The following is a summary of changes in long-term debt for the District for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2016:

2003 General Obligation Bonds
2013 General Obligation Refunding Bonds
Calitornia Safe Drinking Bonds
Citizens Business Bank Certificates
of Participation
Other Postemployment Benefits
Total

Balance at
July 1, 2015 Additions

Balance at Due Within

Repayments June 30, 2016 One Year

1,647.875
7,253,000
1,049,628

2,312,561
103 7,808

(25,147) 1,622,728 25,744
(312,000) 6,941,000 321,000
(140,120 909,508 144,405
(125,641) 2,186,920 131,680

(8,140) (229)

§ 12,263,167 § 7,808

3

(611,048) § 11,659,927 § 622,829
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SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT
Notes to Basic Financial Statements
June 30, 2016

Note 4: Long-Term Debt (Continued)

2003 General Obligation Bonds

On April 29, 2003, and pursuant to Resolution No. 03-15, the District authorized the issuance of General Obligation
Bond of 1990, Series 2003 in the principal amount of $4,000,000. The bond was issued as a single fully registered
bond and matures in installments of the same principal amounts on the same dates as the registered bonds it
represents. Interest on the bond is 4.5% per annum, payable commencing on March 1, 2004 and semi-annually
thereafter on September 1% and March 1% in each year to maturity. During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2014, the
District prepaid $1,994,000 of the outstanding principal on the 2003 General Obligation Bonds from a portion of the
proceeds of the 2013 General Obligation Refunding Bonds. The first instaliment payment that was due September 1,
2014 was deferred until September 1, 2015. The accrued interest of $36,875, as a result of the deferred payment
date, was added to the principal balance for a total outstanding balance of $1,647,875.

The scheduled annual minimam debt service requirements at June 30, 2016 are as follows:

Fiscal Year Ended

June 30, Principal interest Total
2017 $ 25,744 $ 38,540 $ 64,284
2018 26,355 37929 64,284
2019 26,981 37.303 04,284
2020 27.622 36,663 64,285
2021 28,278 36.007 64.283
2022-2026 151,789 169,643 321432
2027.2031 170,691 130,751 121,442
2032-2036 191,945 129506 321,451
2037-2041} 215,849 105,616 321,465
2042.2046 242,728 78,751 321,479
2047-2051 272,953 48,541 321,494
2052-2055 241,793 14,568 256,361
Total $ 1.622.728 % 883,818 3 2,506,546

2013 General Obligation Refunding Bonds

On August 1, 2013, the District issued $7,993,000 of General Obligation Refunding Bonds bearing interest of
4.50% and payable semi-annually on September ! and March 1, maturing on September 1, 2033, The proceeds
of the Bonds were used to (i) prepay, in full, the 1992 General Obligation Bonds; (ii) partial prepayment of the
2003 General Obligation Bonds, and (iii) pay the costs of issuing the Bonds. The outstanding principal balance
of the 2013 General Obligation Refunding Bonds at June 30, 2015 was $7,553,000.

$7,821,765 from the 2013 General Obligation Refunding Bonds was placed in an irrevocable trust that is to be
used to service the future debt requirements of the 1992 General Obligation Bonds and the 2003 General
Obligation Bonds. The refunding resulted in an economic gain (difference between the present value of the debt
service payments on the old and new debts) of $648,545. The aggregate difference in debt service between the
old and new debt is $923.427.

The District defeased the 1992 General Obligation Bonds by placing a portion of the proceeds of the 2013
General Obligation Refunding Bonds in an irrevocable trust to provide for all future debt service payments on the
1992 General Obligation Bonds. Accordingly, the trust account assets and the Hability for the defeased 1992
General Obligation Bonds is not included in the District’s financial statements.
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Note 4: Long-Term Debt (Continued)

2013 General Obligation Refunding Bonds (Continued)

The scheduled annual minimur debt service requirements at June 30, 2016 are as follows:

Fiscal Year Ended

June 30, Principal Inferest Total
27 b3 321,800 k3 244,098 3 565,098
2018 332,000 232,344 364,344
2019 343,000 220,194 363,194
2020 339,000 207,558 566,558
2021 368,000 194,472 362,472
2022-2026 2,063,000 738,790 2,821,790
2027-2031 2,443,000 353,790 2,798,790
2032-2033 710,000 236,328 946,328
Total 3 6,941,600 & 2,447,574 $ 9,388,574

California Safe Drinking Bonds Pavable

On June 24, 1993 the State Department of Water Resources provided a $2,870,000 and $400,000 loan to the District
under the Safe Drinking Water Bond Act of 1986. The project financed by this loan consists of construction of three
wells, interconnection of the system’s service area, and construction of five storage facilities and appurtenances.

The bonds bear interest at 2.955% and mature on April 1, 2021 and 2022. Principal payments are due semi-annually
on October | and April 1 including interest. A 5% administrative fee is included in the principal amount. The
balances at June 30, 2016 are $800,766 and $108,743 respectively.

The scheduled annual minimum debt service requirements at June 30, 2016 are as follows:

Fiscat Year Ended

June 36, Principal Interest Total
2017 5 123,969 $ 26,389 $ 150,298
2018 127,549 22,709 150,258
2019 131,346 19,069 150,415
2020 135,235 15,272 130,507
2021 139,298 11.383 150,681
2022 143,429 10,510 153,939
Total $ 800,766 $ 105,332 3 906,008

Fiscal Year Ended

June 30, Principal interest Total
2007 $ 24,497 3 3,057 $ 23,554
2018 21101 2,433 23,554
2019 21,729 1,825 23,554
2020 22,373 1,181 23,554
2021 23,043 Sit 23,554
Total % 108,743 $ 9,027 % 117,770
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Note 4: Long-Term Debt (Continued)

Citizens Business Bank Certificates of Participation Pavable

On July 3, 2008, Citizens Business Bank as assigned from Municipal Finance Corporation provided a $3,000,000
loan to the District in the form of Cettificates of Participation.

The Certificates of Participation bear interest at 4.75% and mature on August 1, 2028, Principal and interest
payments are due semi-annually on February 1* and August 1™ in the amount of $117,007. The balance at June 30,
2016 is $2,186,921,

The scheduled annual minimum debt service requirements at June 30, 2016 are as follows:

Fiscal Year Ended

June 30, Principal Interest Total
2017 8 131,680 $ 102,333 3 234,013
2018 138,009 96,004 234,013
2019 144,642 89,371 234,013
2020 131,594 82,419 234,013
2021 158,881 75,133 234,014
2022-2026 916,560 253,500 1,170,066
2027-2029 545,555 39,479 585,034
Total 3 2,186,921 ¥ 738.245 3 2,925,166

Note 5: Operating Leases

The District has entered into an operating lease arrangement as lessee for the District offices. The terms of the lease
is for five years with an option to extend for seven, one year periods. The initial five year lease expired on July 31,
2004. The District’s current monthly lease expense for the District offices is $2,295. On May 6, 2014, the District
renegotiated the office lease. The new lease commences August 1, 2014 and expires on July 31, 2017, at a cost of
$2,295 per month. The new lease has an option to expend for one additional term of three years.

The District has also entered into an operating lease arrangement as lessee for a postage machine. The term of the
lease is five years, beginning in October 2015. The District’s current quarterly lease expense for the postage

machine is $302.

The total rental payments for all Jeasing arrangements charged to expenses were $29,012 and $29,842 for June 30,
2016 and 2015 respectively.

Note 6: Employees Retirement Plan (Defined Benefit Pension Plan)

General Information about the Pension Plan

Plan Description, Benefits Provided and Emplovees Covered

The plan is a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan administered by the California

Public Employees® Retirement System (CalPERS). A full description of the pension plan benefit

provisions, assumptions for funding purposes but not accounting purposes, and membership information

is listed in the June 30, 2014 Annual Actuarial Valuation Report. Details of the benefits provided can be
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obtained in Appendix B of the June 30, 2014 actuarial valuation report. This report is a publically
available valuation report that can be obtained at CalPERS’ website under Forms and Publications.

Contribution Description

Section 20814(c) of the California Public Employees’ Retirement Law (PERL) requires that the
employer contribution rates for all public employers be determined on an annual basis by the actuary and
shall be effective on the July I following notice of a change in the rate. The total plan contributions are
determined through the CalPERS’ annual actuarial valuation process. For public agency cost-sharing
plans covered by either the Miscellaneous or Safety risk pools, the Plan’s actuarially determined rate is
based on the estimated amount necessary to pay the Plan’s allocated accrued lHability. The employer is
required to contribute the difference between the actuarially determined rate and the contribution rate of
employees. For the measurement period ended June 30, 2015 (the measurement date), the active
employee contribution rate is 6.887 percent of annual pay and the average employer’s contribution rate is
11.302 percent of annual payroll for the 2% (@ 55 plan and the active employee contribution rate is
6.250 percent of annual pay and the average employer’s contribution rate is 6.250 percent of annual
payroll for the 2% (@ 62 plan. Employer contributions rates may change if plan contracts are amended.
It 1s the responsibility of the employer to make necessary accounting adjustments to reflect the impact
due to any Employer Paid Member Contributions or situations where members are paying a portion of
the employer contribution.

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions Used to Determine Total Pension Liability

For the Measurement period ending June 30, 2013 (the measurement date), the total pension liability was
determined by rolling forward the June 30, 2014 total pension liability. Both the June 30, 2014 total
pension liability and the June 30, 2015 total pension liability were based on the following actuarial
methods and assumptions:

The actuarial methods and assumptions used to set the actuarially determined contributions for Fiscal
Year 2014-15 were derived from the June 30, 2012 funding valuation report.

Actuarial Cost Method Entry Age Normal
Amortization Method/
Period For details, see June 30, 2012 Funding Valuation Report
Asset Valuation Actuarial Value of Assets, For details, see June 30, 2012
Method Funding Valuation Report
Actuarial Assumptions
Discount Rate 7.50%
Inflation 2.75%
Salary Increases Varies by Entry Age and Service
Investment Rate of
Return 7.50% Net of Pension Plan Investment and Administrative
Expenses; includes Inflation
Retirement Age The probabilities of Retirement are based on the 2010 CalPERS
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Experience Study for the period from 1997-2007
The probabilities of mortality are based on the 2010 CalPERS
Experience Study for the period from 1997-2007. Pre-retirement
and Post-retirement mortality rate includes 5 year of projected
mortality improvement using Scale AA published by the Society
of Actuaries.

Mortality Rate Table

The table below reflects long-term expected real rate of return by asset class. The rate of return was
calculated using the capital market assumptions applied to determine the discount rate and asset
allocation. These geometric rates of return are net of administrative expenses.

Asset Class New Strategic Real Return Real Return
Allocation Years 1-10! Years 1142
Global Equity 47.0% 5.25% 5.71%
Global Fixed Income 19.0 0.99 2.43
Inflation Sensitive 6.0 0.45 3.36
Private Equity 12.0 6.83 6.95
Real Estate 11.0 4.50 5.13
Infrastructure and Forestland 3.0 4,50 5.09
Liguidity 2.0 {(0.55) (1.05)

' An expected inflation of 2.5% used for this period
* An expected inflation of 30% used for this period

Discount Rate

The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.65 percent. To determine whether the
municipal bond rate should be used in the calculation of a discount rate for each plan, CalPERS stress
tested plans that would most likely result in a discount rate that would be different from the actuarially
assumed discount rate. Based on the testing, none of the tested plans run out of assets. Therefore, the
current 7.65 percent discount rate is adequate and the use of the municipal bond rate calculation is not
necessary. The long term discount rate of 7.65 percent is applied to all plans in the Public Employees
retirement Fund. The stress test results are presented in a detailed report called “GASB Crossover
Testing Report” that can be obtained at CalPERS’ website under the GASB 68 section.

Changes in Net Pension Liability

The following table shows the Plan’s proportionate share of the risk pool collective net pension liability
over the measurement period.
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Increase
(Decrease)
Plan Total Plan Fiduciary
Pension Net Plan Net Pension
Liability Position Liability/(Asset)
(a) (b) ()=(a)-(b)

Balance at 6/30/2014 (VD) $3,416,010 $2.836,270 $579,740
Balance at 6/30/2015
(MD) $3,460,337 $2,959,633 $500,704
Net Changes during 2014-
15 $ 44,327 $ 133,363 $ 79,036

Sensitivity of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate

The foliowing presents the net pension liability (asset) of the Plan as of the measurement date, calculated
using the discount rate of 7.65 percent, as well as what the net pension liability/(asset) would be if it
were calculated using a discount rate that is 1 percentage-point lower (6.65 percent) or I percentage-

point higher (8.65 percent) than the current rate:

Discount Rate - Discount Rate +
1% Current Discount 1%
(6.65%) Rate (7.65%) (8.65%)
Plan's Net Pension
Liability/( Asset) $839,716 $500,704 $220,811

Subsequent Events

There were no subsequent events that would materially affect the results presented in this disclosure.

Pension Expense and Deferred Qutflows and Deferred Inflows

As of June 30, 2015 the District reports other amounts for the Plan as deferred outflows and deferred

inflows of resources related to pensions as follows:

Deferred OQutfiows of

Deferred Inflows of

Resources Resources
Differences between Expected and
Actual Experience $4,557 $0
Changes of Assumptions $(43,102)
Net Ditference between Projected and
Actual Earnings on Pension Plan
Investments $110,478 $(132,005)

Adjustment due to Differences in
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Proportions
Total $115,035

$(175.107)

The amounts above are net of outflows and inflows recognized in the 2014-15 measurement period
expense.

Amounts reported as deferred inflows of resources related to pensions, other than the employer-specific
item, will be recognized in future pension expense as follows:

Deferred
Measurement Outflows/(Inflows)
Period of
Ended June 30: Resources
2016 $(30,175)
2017 $(30,175)
2018 $(27,422)
2019 27,700
2020 $0
Remaining $0

Note 7: Net Position

GASB Statement No. 63 require that the difference between assets added to the deferred outflows of resources and
liabilities added to the deferred inflows of resources be reported as net position. Net position is classified as either
net investment in capital assets, restricted, or unrestricted.

Net position that is net investment in capital assets consist of capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, and
reduced by the outstanding principal of related debt. Restricted net position is the portion of net position that has
external constraints placed on it by creditors, grantors, contributors, laws, or regulations of other governments, or
through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation. Unrestricted net position consists of net position that does
not meet the definition on net investment in capital assets or restricted net position.

‘The District maintains the majority of its cash with the Sonoma County Treasury in a general operating account,
debt service accounts, and construction accounts.

Cash restricted to long-term debt repayment is held in the debt service accounts, and cash restricted to water system
improvements is held in the construction accounts. The restrictions arise from provisions of the General Obligation
Bond Issues and California Safe Drinking Water Loan Contracts #58330 and #58340.

Note 8: Deferred Compensation Plans

The District offers its employees two deferred compensation plans created in accordance with Internal Revenue
Code Section 457. The plans are available to all employees. The deferred compensation is not available to
employees until termination, retirement, death, or unforeseeable emergency.

All amounts of compensation deferred under the plans, all property and rights purchased with those amounts, and

all income attributable to those amounts, property, or rights are (until paid or made available to the employee or
other beneficiary) held in trust by a third party administrator (ING and AIG Valic) for the exclusive benefit of the
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plan participants and their beneficiaries as prescribed by Internal Revenue Code Section 457 (g). Accordingly,
these assets have been excluded from the accompanying financial statements.

Note 9: Risk Management

The District participates in a joint venture under a joint powers agreement (JPA) with the Special District Risk
Management Authority (SDRMA) for insurance purposes. The SDRMA is a joint powers agency formed pursuant
to Section 6500 et seq., California Government Code, is comprised of California special districts, and agencies. The
refationship between the District and JPA is such that the JPA is not a component of the District for financial
reporting purposes. The SDRMA’s purpose is to jointly fund and develop programs to provide stable, efficient, and
long term risk financing for special districts. These programs are provided through collective self-insurance; the
purchase of insurance coverage’s; or a combination thereof. SDRMA provides general and auto liability, workers’
compensation, public officials® and employees® errors and omissions, employment practices liability, property loss,
and boiler and machinery coverage.

Note 10:  Contingencies

In October, 2014, the District entered into a contract with Coastland Civil Engineering, Inc. for $211,178 (with a
potential of up to $10,000 in extra fees) for engineering of the 2016 Capital Improvement Project (CIP 2016). As
of June 30, 2016, the District has paid Coastland a total of $194,742.72.

In May, 2015, the District entered into a contract with Piazza Construction for $915,433 (with a potential of
$91,453 in additional charges) for construction of CIP 2016, As of June 30, 2016, $853,805.45 was paid to
compiete this contract (project was completed under budget).

In October, 2015, the District entered into a contract with Coastland Civil Engineering, Inc. for $285,884 (with a
potential of up to $10,000 in extra fees) for engineering of the 2017 Capital Improvement Project (CIP 2017). In
March, 2016, this contract was amended to add an additional $69,000 to the contract, for a total of $354,000. As
of June 30, 2016, the District has paid Coastland a total of $123,394.

Note 11:  Post-Retirement Health Insurance

Plan Description

The District provides certain health insurance benefits to retired employees in accordance with memoranda of
understanding as follows:

For employees who retire from the District after at least five (5) vears of service with CalPERS and who have
reached the age of fifty (50) years old, and who continue health insurance through a District-sponsored health
msurance plan, the District will contribute the minimum monthly amount (as required by CalPERS) of the health
insurance premium ($125 and $122 for the calendar year 2016 and 2015 respectively).

Funding Policy

The District adopted a resolution to enter into an agreement with CalPERS to participate in the California
Employer’s Retiree Benefit Trust Program (CERBT). For fiscal year 2015-16, the District contributed $8,140,
which covered current premiums, but did not include any additional prefunding of benefits. Currently, there are
3 retirees who are receiving benefits.
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Annual OPEB and Net OPEB Obligation

The District’s annual other postemployment benefit (OPEB) cost (expense) is calculated based on the annual
required contribution of the employer (ARC), an amount actuarially determined in accordance with the
parameters of GASE Statement No. 457s Alternative Measurement Method allowed for employers with less than
100 plan members. The ARC represents a level of funding that, if paid on an ongoing basis, is projected to cover
normal cost each year and amortize any unfunded actuarial liabilities (or funding excess) over a period not to
exceed thirty years. The following table shows the components of the District’s annual OPERB cost for the fiscal
year, the amount actually contributed to the plan, and changes in the District’s net OPEB obligation.

Annual OPEB and Net OPEB Obliration (Continued)

Annual required contribution 5 7.816
Interest on net OPEB obligation 14
Adjustment to ARC {(22)
Annual OPEB cost {expense) 7,808
Contributions made {(5,140)
Increase mn net OPEB obligation (332)
Net OPEB obligation - beginning of fiscal year 103
Net OPEB obligation - end of fiscal yvear 3 {229)

The District ‘s annual OPEB cost, the percentage of annual OPEB cost contributed to the plan, and the net OPEB
obligation for fiscal years 2013-14, 2014-15, and 2015-16 were as follows:

Fiscal Percentage of OPEB

Year Annual Annual OPEB Obligation

Ended QOPER Cost Cost Contribution (Asset)
6/30/2014 kS 6,453 268% $ 3.621
6/30/2015 6,935 151% 103
6/30/2016 7.807 104% (229)

Funded Status and Funding Progress

As of June 30, 2016, the most recent Alternate Measurement Method valuation dafe, the plan was 6.5 percent
funded. The actuarial accrued liability for benefits was $418,666, and the actuarial value of assets was $25,428,
resulting in an unfunded actuarial accrued liability (UAAL) of $393,238. The covered payroH (annual payroll of
active employees covered by the plan) was $635,038, and the ratio of the UAAL to the covered payroll was 61.9
percent,

The Alternate Measurement Method valuations of an ongoing plan involve estimates of the value of reported
amounts and assumptions about the probability of occurrence of events far into the future. Examples include
assumptions about future employment, mortality, and the healthcare cost trend. Amounts determined regarding
the funded status of the plan and the annual required contributions of the employer are subject to continual
revision as actual results are compared with past expectations and new estimates are made about the future. The
schedule of funding progress, presented as required supplementary information following the notes to the
financial statements, present multi-year trend information about whether the actuarial value of plan assets is
increasing or decreasing over time relative to the actuarial accrued liabilities for benefits.

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions

28





SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT
Notes to Basic Financial Statements
June 30, 2016

Projections of benefits for financial reporting purposes are based on the substantive plan (the plan as understood
by the employer and the plan members) and include the types of benefits provided at the time of each valuation
and the historical pattern of sharing of benefit costs between the employer and plan members to that point. The
Alternate Measurement Method valuation methods and assumptions used include techniques that are designed to
reduce the effects of short-term volatility in actuarial accrued liabilities and the actuariai value of assets,
consistent with the long-term perspective of the calculations.

A

In the June 30, 2016 actuarial valuation, the actuarial assumptions included a 3.3 percent investment rate of
return, a 75 percent continuity rate that retirees will continue to participate in CalPERS health, and an annual
healthcare cost trend rate of 3.2 percent. The actuarial value of assets is not applicable (no assets as of the initial
vatuation date). The UAAL is being amortized as a flat percentage of covered payrolis over thirty years. The
remaining amortization period at June 30, 2016 was twenty-eight (28) vears,
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Other Postemplovment Benefits

Schedule of Funding Progress

Accrued Value of {Excess Funded Covered % of

Valnation Liability Assets Assets) Status Payroll Payroll
Date (a) (k) {a)-(b) (b)(a) {c) [(a)-(b)]/(c)
6/30/2013 § 3356067 8 - 5 335,607 00% §  701.805 47.8%
6/30/2014 % 333607 % - $ 335,607 00% § 701,805 47.8%
6/30/2015  § 335,607 % - & 333,607 0.0% % 701,865 47.8%
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SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT
TO: Board of Directors AGENDA NO. V-B

FROM: Steve Mack, General Manager

Meeting Date : February 2, 2017

SUBJECT: REVIEW OF AND COMMENTS ON THE SONOMA COUNTY
WATER AGENCY FISH FLOW PROJECT

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Receive a presentation from General Manager Steve Mack
regarding review and comment on a proposed comment letter on the Sonoma
County Water Agency draft Environmental Impact Report (DEIR) on its proposal
to change Water Rights Decision 1610 with changes proposed by the Fish Flow
Project and a press release on that comment letter for the DEIR, and provide
direction to staff.

FISCAL IMPACT: none

DISCUSSION:

(until the last paragraphs, this report is identical to the January report; please note that
the comment period has been extended to March 10)

In mid August 2016, the Sonoma County Water Agency (SCWA) released the long-
awaited draft Environmental Impact Report (DEIR) on the Fish Habitat Flows and Water
Rights Project, also called the Fish Flow Project. This DEIR is the environmental
document for their proposed changes to Water Rights Decision 1610 which governs how
releases from the dams that regulate the Russian River are made and sets a range of
required minimum flows at various points in the River. It appears that SCWA wants to
achieve two major actions from the proposed changes to Decision 1610:

e Make permanent the flow changes ordered by the Biological Opinion for
endangered salmonid species in the Russian River (BO), and

e Change the Decision 1610 hydrologic index so that 1) it is based on Lake
Mendocino instead of Lake Pillsbury, has more ( from 3 currently to 5) conditions
on which to base releases, 3) takes account of the reduced inflows from the Eel
River, and 4) has more flexibility seasonally, going from seasonal decisions to
monthly decisions.

Based on the schedule released when the EIR was made publicly available, comments
on the draft EIR had to be in by October 17, 2016. On September 13, 2016, SCWA
made a public presentation of the draft EIR at the Board of Supervisors meeting. | and
many others commented that we needed more time to review the document. The
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Supervisors heard that plea and the comment period was extended to February 14 with
a public hearing in Guerneville at the Vet's Hall on November 17.

Concerns we have discussed and expressed regarding the Fish Flow Project and its DEIR
include:

o Water Rights: The Fish Flow Project petition makes the statement that it harms
no existing water rights. SCWA staff has told us that in their opinion SSWD has
no right to divert water when the River is in critical drought stage (not clear
where we would stand in their opinion with their new HI). The Fish Flow Project
adds a diversion point in Monte Rio for the Occidental Community Services
District and the Urban Water Management Plan states that additional water would
be diverted to Marin County so SSWD is being harmed by this project. This is an
impact of the Fish Flow Project that should be discussed in the DEIR and it is
easily fixed.

e 75,000 AFY Diversion: the requested 75,000 AFY diversion is an illusory number
- SCWA hasn't come near that amount to date (D1610 gave them until 1999 to
perfect that amount) and that without a massive population increase State
requirements on water conservation will not allow the contractors to SCWA come
close to that number. The DEIR should honestly discuss this issue and provide
alternatives to a 75,000 AFY diversion amount.

¢ Hydrologic Index: It's a good idea but the HI is given as a fait accompli and the
EIR should discuss alternatives.

We have recently received notice that the comment deadline has been extended to
March 10 to allow for review of DEIR errata that was released, pulled back and now set
to be released on January 27, 2017. | have not reviewed the errata; the press release
states that it has to do with replacing temperature and dissolved oxygen (DO) graphs in
Appendix G (which was called the Modeling Appendix in the brief view of the errata I
viewed on January 26 prior to it getting pulled). We have not been concerned with
temperature or DO impacts in our review of this Project so I don't expect the errata
information to have an effect on our comments.

The press release states that the errata are not substantial enough to cause a
recirculation of this DEIR. Of course, we believe many corrections and additions are
needed for this DEIR, and the Project itself needs reformulation and additional public
input.

Attached to this report is a draft comment letter that includes the District's issues with
the DEIR. Please review this letter and provide comments and direction regarding
submittal prior to the comment deadline which is now March 10.

As | have stated many times, | believe these issues should be resolved in county, not
before the State Board. Directors Marquez de la Plata and Holmer, and I met with
Supervisor-elect Hopkins on December 19 to discuss this issue. She agreed with the
above concept and encouraged me to meet with Supervisor Gore on this issue.
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We haven't met or communicated with either Supervisor Gore or Hopkins since our last
Board meeting (although | did place a call and left a message with Ms Hopkins). | did
meet with Directors Holmer and Pip Marquez de la Plata to discuss a possible press
release regarding this item. We agreed that the press release should go with the
submittal of the comment letter. The draft press release is attached to this report.
Also Board President Robb-Wilder has provided extensive comments on the draft letter.





February 2, 2017

Sonoma County Water Agency

Attn: Jessica Martini-Lamb, Principal Environmental Specialist
404 Aviation Boulevard

Santa Rosa, CA 95403

Ms Martini-Lamb:

Thank you for the opportunity to comment on the draft Environmental
Impact Report (DEIR) for the proposed Fish Habitat Flows and Water
Rights Project (Project). This is an important proposal that, if
approved as outlined in the DEIR, would have lasting effects on the
many users of the Russian River. For that reason, this DEIR must be
complete. It must fully describe the reasonably anticipated impacts
that the Project will have on the residents of the Russian River
watershed, and it must provide for reasonable mitigation or project
alternatives where necessary.

However, although the DEIR is voluminous, more than 3600 pages, in
fact it falls far short of addressing requirements adequately. For this
reason Sweetwater Springs Water District strongly urges the Board of
Directors of the Sonoma County Water Agency (SCWA) not to approve
the Project as scoped and not to certify this DEIR.

The Project harms the water rights of Sweetwater Springs Water
District (which is not discussed in the DEIR). There are also other
impacts that should be discussed in the DEIR, and alternatives and
mitigations that should be presented, or the Project should be
modified.

SCWA is the preeminent water agency in the County and as such it
should act in the best interests of all residents of the County and the
Russian River Watershed. This Project is an opportunity to address and
fix the many issues of the Russian River. Through appropriate public
outreach, a project can be developed that does this much better than
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the one proposed in this DEIR. The SCWA Board of Directors should
direct the staff of SCWA to conduct the claimed extended outreach to
develop a project that serves all.

Sweetwater Springs Water District is putting these comments into the
public record to be considered by the Board of Directors of SCWA in its
consideration of this DEIR.

1. Sweetwater Springs Water District (SSWD) is harmed by this
project through this Project's attempt, whether foreseen or
unforeseen, to make SSWD's water use junior to projected
water uses by users of this Project.

SCWA staff have informed Sweetwater Springs staff that they
believe SSWD has no right to divert water during dry periods in the
Russian River. SSWD does not agree with that position.
Regardless, this action before the State Board is an excellent
opportunity to resolve the issue. However, this DEIR makes no
mention of this major water rights issue. Sweetwater Springs is an
urban water supplier with more than 3600 customers. It is the
major source of water for residential water use in the lower River
area. The Project adds the Occidental Community Services District
and the City of Windsor to SCWA permits putting those water users
senior to SSWD's water rights (according to the SCWA staff theory
of SSWD's water rights). This is an additional harm to SSWD.

The DEIR also casually mentions other water rights that may have
bypass flow issues. There are likely other water rights-related
issues that need to be addressed in conjunction with the SCWA
petitions and these need to be fully examined in the DEIR. A
comprehensive analysis of Russian River flow requirements and
possibilities is necessary for this DEIR to adequately address these
serious issues.

The impact to Sweetwater Water Springs Water District is avoidable
and the DEIR needs to include the mitigation measure(s) to avoid
this impact. One possible mitigation would be a recognition by
SCWA that diversions by SCWA for its contractors in excess of the
amount diverted in 1999, the original completion date for these
permits, are junior to Sweetwater Springs diversions and that flow
in the River during all schedules of the Hydrologic Index has
adequate unimpaired flows to fulfill Sweetwater Water's water
rights, and have this recognized by the State Board in the final
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determination on these petitions for change of Decision 1610
(D1610).

2. The petitions for change claim there will be no harm to
existing legal water users in the River; from the above
comments, this is clearly not the case.

The DEIR must fully identify all Russian River water rights and
examine them so that any impacts on any water rights are
examined. The Project, through this EIR process, should provide
mitigation or fixes for those impacts.

3. The DEIR must have a better examination and analysis of water
rights so that the State Water Resources Control Board (State
Board) can make the decisions it must consider regarding the
Project.

The DEIR states that SCWA does not make decisions on water rights
but the State Board does and the State Board will use this DEIR to
make decisions regarding the water rights associated with D1610.
Some of the water rights mentioned in the DEIR have minimum
bypass flows but those bypass flows were likely established with the
minimum flows established by D1610. The DEIR should examine this
issue in more detail and also examine whether other water rights
associated with the Russian River will be impacted by anything
associated with this Project

4. The DEIR does not adequately discuss all current issues with
D1610. Instead, it addresses the narrow focus that SCWA
desires the State Board to rule on - the minimum flows
negotiated between SCWA and the National Marine Fisheries
Service (NMFS) for the Biological Opinion.

D1610 is broken in part because diversions from the Eel River have
been reduced and diversions from the Russian River have
increased. Change in D1610 does not happen often and, if done,
must be done correctly and the time used to evaluate changes used
efficiently. SCWA may only want to change a few elements of
D1610, but those elements affect everything else and all the
impacts must be fully examined in this DEIR.
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5. This DEIR is much less than what is needed to properly
evaluate the impacts of the Project on the Russian River
watershed.

The DEIR is too narrowly focused and describes only a limited set of
changes to D1610. D1610 is a comprehensive set of rules for
operating the Russian River. One can't just change a few conditions
without considering the whole. This DEIR doesn't do that and
needs to be revised and expanded to look at all aspects of D1610.
SCWA is the pre-eminent water agency in Sonoma County, and as
such, should be broadly looking at fixing the issues with D1610.
Even if it wasn't the pre-eminent water agency, the changes it's
requesting need a full examination of D1610.

6. The California State Water Resources Board (State Board)
should be the lead agency and be responsible for preparing
this DEIR.

The State Board makes the decisions on the petition to change
D1610 and other requests by SCWA.

In the past the State Board has aggressively defended its
responsibility to be lead agency for its decisions and it should do so
again in this case. The State Board is clearly the agency making
decisions in this situation, and should be lead agency and
responsible for DEIR preparation to ensure that the DEIR includes
all the information needed to make the necessary revisions to
D1610.

SCWA has already made its decision in regards to the Project — it
negotiated certain flows with the National Marine Fisheries Service
(NMFS) in agreeing to a Biological Opinion of No Jeopardy for the
endangered and threatened salmonid species covered by the
Biological Opinion.

It is not appropriate for the Project proponent to be the lead agency

in the preparation of the DEIR document.

7. The DEIR claims there was extended public outreach in the
preparation of this DEIR, but this did not occur.
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We are not aware of what we would call extended public outreach in
this process. The process should have included multiple regional
meetings so that there was opportunity for all those affected by the
changes in Russian River flows to understand the impacts and effects
of the flow regimes evaluated during this DEIR process and to make
certain the Project and this DEIR includes information on all the
changes that could or need to happen with D1610. This did not
happen.

At the very least, the DEIR must correct its assertions that there was
extended public outreach. Better yet would be to put a hold on this
EIR process so that the extended public outreach can occur and help
make this a better project and DEIR.

8. Piecemealing - this DEIR's focus on only the Fish Habitat Flows
and Water Rights Project does not allow needed examination of
the interrelated impacts of this project with the Estuary Project
and the Dry Creek Project.

These three projects should have been first considered as one project,
even though splitting the project into three smaller constituents is
perhaps easier for review and approval. The effects of these projects
are interconnected and impact each other. These projects should be
considered together. There should have been a more broadly scoped
DEIR process for the much larger project that has come out of the
Biological Opinion process. Unfortunately, this draft DEIR addresses
only a part of the larger project that is bringing and has brought many
changes to the Russian River.

The overall project is a water supply project for the water contractors
who buy water that SCWA diverts from the Russian River. This water
supply is constrained by a Biological Opinion which requires lower
minimum flows at a number of locations along the mainstem of the
River, sand barrier maintenance at the mouth of the River to provide
for better maintenance of estuary conditions (which is one of the
reasons for the lower minimum flows in the lower River), and certain
actions in Dry Creek to make that better habitat, for instance for coho
salmon, and perhaps other things.

Properly scoped, this larger project is an opportunity to examine
changes to the Decision 1610 hydrologic index to better reflect current
and future conditions. The Project as currently scoped improperly
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advocates changes to Decision 1610 based on incomplete and
inadequate information.

9. As examples of piecemealing, the DEIR does not adequately
examine the impacts of this project on salinity in the lower
River nor does it explain or analyze the necessity for lower
flows downstream of the Hacienda Bridge.

If the sand barrier project works, salinity may move up the River to
where it impacts potable water supply, including, but not limited to
the water supply for Sweetwater Springs Water District. We don't
see any discussion of this in this DEIR or in the Sand Barrier Project
DEIR. It must be addressed. It should be fully examined in this
DEIR.

It appears the only reason related to the Biological Opinion for the
lower flows downstream of the Hacienda Bridge is to keep the sand
barrier closed during the summer. For several years SCWA has
applied for and received TUCs to lower the flows. However, lower
flows have not been successful in keeping the sand barrier closed.
Nevertheless, despite repeated failures, SCWA is requesting low
flows be made permanent.

More importantly, this failure to maintain the sand barrier is not
adequately discussed in either EIR. We don't get another shot at
the Estuary Project EIR. Hence, the need for low flows downstream
of Hacienda Bridge, and the failure of low flows to maintain the
sand barrier should be fully discussed in this DEIR or the EIR
process should be opened up to include analysis of both projects
together.

10. This DEIR should cover a broader range of alternatives and
information so that the California State Water Resources Board
(State Board) can make decisions necessary to completely and
properly redo Decision 1610.

If certified by SCWA Board of Directors this DEIR will be used by the
State Board to make their decisions on the petitions for change
requested by SCWA. As decision maker, the State Board should be
the lead agency and should be providing the direction for this DEIR.
Lack of this direction shows in the narrow focus of the DEIR, which will
not give the State Board adequate information and analysis for its
decisions on the change petitions.
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11.

The proposed Project includes components which are all ultimately
decided upon by the State Board, yet the DEIR does not adequately
discuss and evaluate those components. Specifically:

a. Hydrologic Index. The new Russian River Hydrologic Index
has no alternatives evaluated in the DEIR.

b. Deadline Extensions. Extending the deadlines for completing
full beneficial use in these permits from 1999 to December 31,
2040. There is no explanation why 41 additional years are needed
to complete the requested diversion. The DEIR has no explanation
why the permit completion date is so far into the future. The 2040
date should be explained and there should be alternatives to this
date as part of the discussion.

C. Existing Water Rights. The petitions for change stated that
these requests would not harm existing water rights holders. This
is not the case. As noted above, adding the Occidental
Community Services District and Town of Windsor points of
diversion and re-diversion to the authorized points of diversion in
these permits are detrimental to Sweetwater Springs Water
District and are likely detrimental to other licensed and permitted
water rights holders in the Russian River watershed. Sweetwater
Springs Water District has a license for 1137 AFY; this water use
has been fully perfected. Nevertheless, this Project proposes to
add water diversions with a requested priority date ahead of
Sweetwater Springs Water District. The DEIR needs to fully
discuss this issue, but it is mentioned nowhere in the DEIR.

The DEIR does not adequately address the Project objective
of 75,000 AFY of diversions, which is much more than the
Baseline diversion amount and more than current SCWA
diversions.

The amount of 75,000 AFY diversion needs full discussion, with
alternatives proposed and analyzed. California water agencies are
under directions to reduce water use, not increase it. The DEIR needs
to fully discuss the trends of urban water use and how that may affect
the projected water use of the SCWA contractors and others to whom
SCWA sells water. The amount of diversion should be part of the
alternatives analysis.
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There are at least two issues with Contractor diversions as presented
in the DEIR: total amount of 75,000 AFY and taking the total amount
in all years in the modeling of alternatives.

12. The DEIR needs to explain actual SCWA water diversions and
projected diversions from the Russian River, including
information stated in the SCWA Urban Water Management
Plans compared to the requested 75,000 AFY diversion.

For instance, the SCWA 2010 UWMP shows an actual 2010 diversion of
50,796 AFY. In 2015 the diversion was lower at 43,145 AFY. Although
that was a drought year with calls for reducing water use, we know
that the need to conserve water is becoming the norm in California.
The 2015 population served was 614,196.

For 2040, the UWMP projects a population of 742,040, an increase of
21% over 2015. However, the UWMP projects a diversion amount of a
whopping 73,895 AFY. This is a 45% increase over the 2010 actual
diversion amount.

The DEIR needs to explain why water use is projected to increase at a
much higher rate than population when all trends and State agency
directions are that water use should decrease on a per capita basis.

13. The hydrology analyses in the DEIR should be changed to
better reflect actual diversion practices during droughts.

The modeling apparently does not accurately handle contractor
diversions during a drought. The DEIR does not discuss drought
conditions or how drought is defined relative to the various schedules
of the proposed Hydrologic Index. Is a drought schedule 3, 4 or 5 or
some combination of the above?

The modeling apparently has annual diversions of 75,000 AFY for all
alternatives in all years except when Lake Sonoma goes below
100,000 AF of storage. In actual practice, whenever there's a drought
as defined by low rainfall or low Lake Mendocino storage, regional
urban water agencies urge our customers to conserve water.

Contractor diversions should be tied to the Hydrologic Index -when it
goes to schedule 3 or lower, contractor diversions should be lowered
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and that should be included in the modeling. The DEIR should fully
discuss this and redo the analyses.

14. The request for 75,000 AFY should have alternatives to
better reflect actual future diversions.

The continued request for a 75,000 AFY diversion amount goes
contrary to current State practices whereby all urban water agencies
had to go through a process to reduce their water use by 20% by 2020
compared to a baseline in the early 2000's. SCWA's 2015 diversion of
44,000 AF and the DEIR Baseline of 55,000 - can and should
diversions increase that much?

SCWA may desire to preserve its 75,000 AFY diversion amount but it
may not be a realistic number. Whatever that realistic number might
be, it should be fully examined and discussed in the DEIR in an
alternatives analysis.

15. The DEIR does not explain what happens to River flows
when diversions are not at 75,000 AFY.

All the analyses of the preferred Project are based on an annual
diversion of 75,000 AFY through the modeling of the simulated
historical record of Russian River flows. However, that level of
diversion is only reached, even by SCWA estimations, in 2040, 24
years from now. The DEIR baseline has annual diversions of 55,000
AFY. However, in 2015 SCWA diverted 43,000 AFY and the SCWA
2015 Urban Water Management Plan shows a projected diversion of
73,895 in 2040 but only 64,439 in 2020 (which still seems high
compared to the 2015 diversion).

The DEIR has no discussion of whether these diversion projections are
reasonable and no discussion of where the extra water goes in the
many years prior to the full 75,000 AFY diversion happening, if it ever
does happen.

The DEIR needs to explain and examine what happens to the extra
water in the system when diversions are significantly lower than
75,000 AFY. Does this water result in extra summer flow releases?
Will it be pulsed down the River in late summer or fall releases? We
believe it will need to be released prior to the winter rainy season to
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provide flood storage - is that the case? The DEIR needs a full
explanation of this.

16. Hydrologic Index.

The Hydrologic Index is a major new, changed element of the Project
that Sweetwater Springs supports but much fuller discussion is
needed. There is no discussion of alternatives to this Hydrologic Index
in the DEIR. There is also no discussion of alternatives that have a
range of Hydrologic Indices.

The DEIR states that in the technical committee analyses that came up
with the new Hydrologic Index, consideration was given to a
Hydrologic Index that had upper and lower River components with the
lower River component based on Lake Sonoma. However, there is no
discussion in the DEIR of why the preferred Hydrologic Index was
chosen and no analysis given in the DEIR on the differences. It makes
sense that the lower River could be governed by Lake Sonoma water
levels as that's where the summer releases are coming from.

17. The DEIR does not discuss or analyze why the proposed
minimum flows in drier years are lower than what was
negotiated with the National Marine Fisheries Service (NMFS)
in the Biological Opinion.

The Biological Opinion sets the minimum flow for normal years in the
lower River at 70 cfs and stipulates nothing different for drier years.
However, the alternatives presented in the proposed Project have
lower minimum flows than required by NMFS (stage 4 is 50 cfs and
stage 5 is 35 cfs).

The DEIR should include alternatives that directly match the flows
negotiated with NMFS and should discuss why the proposed Project
has lower flows than those required by the Biological Opinion.

18. The DEIR should provide more information on the future of
Eel River Diversions.

These are likely getting cut off in the future and the DEIR should
properly discuss this. It's mentioned in the Cumulative Chapter but
not given the prominence it deserves.
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19.

20.

21.

22.

The DEIR has a limited and poor choice of alternatives.

The official list of alternatives are a poor selection of what should
have been analyzed in the DEIR The Baseline is not the real baseline;
it's a situation that existed for maybe two years but it's claimed for
much longer. Perhaps there should be a Baseline 1 and 2 like there is
a No Project 1 and 2.

The Table 7-1 list of alternatives flow scenarios is not clear - what do
these alternative names mean? For examples BO, NP1, NP2 can be
guessed, but what are F1-18? Are these possible alternatives that
were discarded for undisclosed reasons? Why are these flow
alternatives not part of a larger list of alternatives considered by this
DEIR? Also, as noted in other comments there should be alternatives
for the Hydrologic Index and the 75,000 AFY diversion amount.

Section 4.0.6 Effects Determined Not to be Significant and
Not Discussed Further includes effects that are significant and
should be fully discussed in the DEIR.

This Project proposes to increase diversions to 75,000 AFY yet there

are no discussions of population, housing, traffic, or land use and

planning (and maybe agricultural resources) effects. Who is going to

use the extra 20,000 AFY? Where are they going to live? How are
they going to get to work?

The end Project results in a 40% increase in water diversion and use

according to this DEIR. In this era of better and better water

conservation, why would more water be needed unless there were at

least 40% more people to use that water? The DEIR must address
and explain this anomaly.

the cumulative impacts; this is an issue that needs more
examination and analysis in the DEIR.

The DEIR says no mitigation is possible; however, the DEIR is not

considering all alternatives - releases from Lake Sonoma, for example.

no Table of Contents

Water quality in the Lower River appears to be impacted by

Appendix G, Hydrology, needs clarifying. It has no heading,

11
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There's no way to know what is in this appendix without reading
through the appendix itself. Problems like this make this voluminous
DEIR more unwieldly than necessary.

In conclusion, we reiterate that this Project harms Sweetwater Springs
Water District by not considering the Project's effects on the District's
water rights and the potential loss of water supply to downstream water
users. We urge that the Project as currently proposed be rejected by the
Sonoma County Water Agency Board of Directors, that the claimed
extended public outreach actually be performed so that this needed
Project (and we do agree that it is needed) can be better formulated to
meet the needs of all users of the River, and that the EIR process be
restarted with an improved Project that does not harm the District.

Thank you for the opportunity to comment.

Sukey Robb-Wilder, President
Sweetwater Springs Water District
sws@monitor.net

707-869-4000

Pip Marquez de la Plata, Vice President
Tim Lipinski, Financial Coordinator
Gaylord Schapp, Director

Rich Holmer, Director

cc: Lynda Hopkins, Sonoma County Water Agency Board of Directors
James Gore, Sonoma County Water Agency Board of Directors
Shirlee Zane, Sonoma County Water Agency Board of Directors
Susan Gorin, Sonoma County Water Agency Board of Directors
David Rabbitt, Sonoma County Water Agency Board of Directors
Matt St. John, North Coast Regional Water Quality Control Board

Jennifer Dick-McFadden, California State Water Resources
Control Board
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PRESS RELEASE Sprmgs
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DISTRICT

FISH FLOW PROJECT THREATENS ACCESS TO DRINKING WATER FOR
RUSSIAN RIVER RESIDENTS

The Sonoma County Water Agency (SCWA) has released a draft Environmental Impact
Report (DEIR) on the Fish Habitat Flows and Water Rights Project (also called the Fish
Flow Project). The Sweetwater Springs Water District (District) has reviewed the DEIR
and has concluded that current DEIR has not adequately described the Fish Flow
Project impacts, particularly on the water rights of the District. ~ The District serves
approximately 8000 people in the Guerneville and Monte Rio area communities. The
only sources of water supply for the District are wells along the Russian River.

The District’s concerns are as follows:

e Most of the public discussion regarding this project has focused on the fish flow aspects
and the associated reductions in summer water flows in the Russian River. However,
the District is concerned about the water rights aspects of the project. The issues with
the project go well beyond protection of fish. The proposed changes in water rights
allocations present the most dramatic change in the Russian River flow regimen since

the construction of Warm Springs Dam.

e Although the District has water rights to appropriate water from the District wells,
SCWA has informed the District that we will not have rights to pump from our wells
during drought conditions when the river flow is dramatically reduced under the
regimen proposed in the DEIR. During a drought this could cut off water supply to the
residents served by our District and a municipal water utility without water during a
drought does not have an adequate water supply. There is no discussion of this impact

in the DEIR.
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e SCWA is asking for an ultimate diversion right of 75,000 acre feet per year (AFY) but its
maximum diversions since the construction of the Warm Springs Dam is in the mid
50,000 AFY range. Through this project, it is asking for the right to divert more water to
the detriment of Sweetwater Springs Water District and possibly other current
legitimate water users of the Russian River. We don't know the extent of this because
the DEIR does not discuss this issue in any detail. SCWA's petitions for change to the
Russian River water rights states that these petitions will not harm existing users of

water but clearly this is not the case.

The District does not concur with the SCWA's stated position on the District's water
rights but this project is a good opportunity to settle this vital public health issue.
We would like to see resolution of this issue before the project proceeds any further
and would like to see formal acknowledgement of the rights of downstream water
users by the SCWA. The appropriate way to do this is with an appropriately scoped
Fish Flow Project with adequate evaluation and description so that the State Water
Resources Control Board can make an appropriate decision affirming all legitimate

water rights for users of the Russian River.

attachment: District comments on the DEIR
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TO:

SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT

Board of Directors AGENDA NO. V-C

FROM: Steve Mack, General Manager

Meeting Date: February 2, 2017

SUBJECT: ACTUAL VS. BUDGETED (OPERATIONS AND CAPITAL) REPORT THRU
DECEMBER 31, 2016 (50%)

RECOMMENDED ACTION:

(Discussion item only.)

FISCAL IMPACT:

(None.)

DISCUSSION:

This report presents the 2nd quarter actual revenues and expenses. This
comprises 50% of the year by time and so we compare the revenues and
expenses to that standard.

Operating Budget:
2Q Revenue is greater than 5026 of budgeted amount.

Water Sales, the largest revenue line item, came in 1.78% ahead of the 50%
schedule. Seasonal fluctuations typically render first and second quarter water
sales higher than other quarters due to higher sales for outside watering and
greater visitor activity during the warmer weather. In terms of the units of water
sold this year’s sales remain slow historically, but are slightly (3%) higher than
last year's water sales.

Overall revenues are right on track.

2Q Expenditures are higher than 50%6 of budgeted amount.

2Q expenditures are 1.63% higher than budgeted. This is expected, as
certain District bills -- such as insurance -- are paid in full at the beginning
of the fiscal year and the annual payment for the phone system
maintenance ($1,500) and CERBT ($3,090) was made in the 2nd quarter.
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There was one unbudgeted expense this quarter: Costs totaling $3,577
were incurred to transfer management and troubleshooting of our SCADA
system from our past consultant who retired to a new consultant.

For more detail on all the budget line items, please refer to the attached Actual
vs. Budgeted breakdown provided with your packet.

Capital Budget:

The 2nd Quarter Actual vs Budgeted demonstrates how things can change during
a fiscal year. The largest revenue and expense items in the Capital Budget are
not happening so that makes it more difficult to follow the fiscal year progress.
We are not doing the full 2017 CIP and, thus, we are not going after the USDA
loan/bond. In a separate Agenda item we are recommending a mid-year budget
revision to reflect expected revenues and expenses better.

Other unbudgeted events were paying off the smaller State loan and refinancing
the Private Placement Loan (actually an interest rate reset) which incurred costs
for Brandis Tallman. We are recommending that these be in the mid-year
adjustment as well.

Highlighted in the Capital Budget is a one-time transfer to CIRF of $50,392 from
Operations for a prior year surplus.

We did receive the first installment of annual assessment revenue, Capital
Debt Reduction Charge (CDRC) and transfers to in-house construction won't
be happening until later in the fiscal year.

FUNDS AT THE COUNTY

Table 3. Fund and Loan Balances show a comparison of the budgeted and 2nd
Quarter balances. Also attached is the County Fund Balances for the 2nd
Quarter. Table 3 includes all the funds listed in the County Fund Balances.

Table 3 is typical for the 2nd quarter of the fiscal year - the first debt payments
have been made and the first installment of the annual assessment has come in.
The County funds for the smaller State Loan (0700 and 0800) can go away or be
repurposed - it's been paid off.

The County Balances Table shows that funds above District Policy are $963, 832
at mid year.





Sweetwater Springs Water District
FY 2016-17 Operating Budget Variances as of December 31, 2016 (50%)

Note: Document is cumulative. Changes to text made from previous reports are *'d in the "Changed" column and underlined.

$ Over
FY 2016-17 2016-17 Budget for % of Budget Notes (Underlined notes reflect *=Ch
Actual Budget the Year changes since last report) ged
Ordinary Income/Expense
Income
OPERATING REVENUE
4031 - Water Sales
4031.10- Base Rate 745,145 1,482,093 -736,948 50.28%
4031.11- Current Charges 334,379 597,361 -262,982 55.98%)
4031.12- Capital Debt Reduction Charge 135,544 270,375 -134,831 50.13%
4031.1 - Other Water Sales Revenue 1,758 0 1,758 100.0%)
Total 4031 - Water Sales 1,216,826 2,349,829 -1,133,003 51.78%] This is a cash water sales figure. *
Total OPERATING REVENUE 1,216,826 2,349,829 -1,133,003 51.78%)
NON-OPERATING REVENUE
1700 - Interest 4,973 7,500 -2,527 66.3%] .
3600 - Construction New Services 5,575 7,000 -1,425 79.64%
3601 - Construction - Service Upgrades 300 2,000 -1,700 15.0%
4032 - Rent 55,156 94,346 -39,190 58.46%
4227 - SCWA reimbursement 0 2,500 -2,500 0.0%
4040 - Miscellaneous Income 461 1,500 -1,039 30.75%
Total NON-OPERATING REVENUE 66,465 114,846 -48,381 57.87%)
Total Income 1,283,291 2,464,675 -1,181,384 52.07%
Expense
OPERATING EXPENSES
SALARY & BENEFITS
Salary
5910 - Wages 392,656 823,000 -430,344 47.71%] .
5912 - Overtime 14,917 34,400 -19,483 43.36%
5916 - On-Call Pay 16,410 37,700 -21,290 43.53%
5918 - Extra help - Contract 18,466 37,000 -18,534 49.91%
Total Salary 442,449 932,100 -489,651 47.47%
Benefits
5500 - Flex Spending (Flex spending monies -1,404 0 -1,404 100.0%)
5920 - Retirement net employee share 45,631 84,460 -38,829 54.03%] .
5922 - Payroll Taxes - Employer Paid 5,977 14,355 -8,378 41.64%
5930 - Health/Dental/Vision/AFLAC Ins. 75,782 146,000 -70,218 51.91%
. In the 2Q, our annual deposit into our CERBT *
5931 - Retiree Health 5,340 7,000 -1,660 76.29%] _ Ccount was made in the sum of $3.000.
In the 1Q, workers' compensation insurance was
5940 - Workers Comp Insurance 45,125 36,000 9,125 125.35% paid for the year. This line item was underbudgeted.
Total Benefits 176,452 287,815 -111,363 61.31%
Total SALARY & BENEFITS 618,901 1,219,915 -601,014 50.73%)
SERVICES & SUPPLIES
Communications
6040-I - Internet service 972 1,850 -878 52.52%
6040-C - Cell Phones 1,947 4,050 -2,103 48.07%
6040-P - Pagers & Radios 240 620 -380 38.74%)
6040-T - Telephones 8,760 17,000 -8,240 51.53%] -
Total Communications 11,918 23,520 -11,602 50.67%)
Insurances
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6101 - Gen. Liability

6102 - Auto/Equipment
Total Insurances

Maint/Rep - Office & Vehicles
6140 - Vehicle Maintenance

6151 - Office Maintenance
Total Maint/Rep - Office & Vehicles

Maint/Repair - Facilities
6085 - Janitorial Services

6100 - SCADA system

6180 - Distribution System Repairs

6235 - Treatment Sys/Well Repairs
6143 - Generator Maintenance
Total Maint/Repair - Facilities

Miscellaneous Expenses

6280 - Memberships

6303 - Claims

6593 - Governmental Fees
Total Miscellaneous Expenses

Office Expense
6410 - Postage
6430 - Printing Expense
6461 -
6800 -
6890 -

6579 - Furniture
Total Office Expense

Office Supplies
Subscriptions/Legal Notices

Computers/Software

Operating Supplies
6300 - Chemicals
6880 - Tools and Equipment
6881 - Safety Equipment
Total Operating Supplies

Professional Services
6083 - Laundry Service
6514 - Lab/Testing Fees

6570 -
6610 -
6630 -
Total Professional Services

Consultant Fees
Legal
Audit/Accounting

Rents & Leases

6820 - Equipment

6840 - Building & Warehouse
Total Rents & Leases

Sweetwater Springs Water District
FY 2016-17 Operating Budget Variances as of December 31, 2016 (50%)

Note: Document is cumulative. Changes to text made from previous reports are *'d in the "Changed" column and underlined.

$ Over
FY 2016-17 2016-17 Budget for % of Budget Notes (Underlined notes reflect *=Ch
Actual Budget the Year changes since last report) ged
29,955 32,200 -2,245 93.03%] (In the 1Q, paid for the year. )
0 0.0%
29,955 32,200 -2,245 93.03%)
3,938 18,000 -14,062 21.88%( .
o In the 2Q the District paid for the annual phone *
4,302 6,200 -1,898 69.39% maintenance contract for the in the sum of $1500.
8,241 24,200 -15,959 34.05%)
4,638 8,500 -3,862 54.57%)
In the 20, the District spent an unbudgeted $3,577 to
4,747 5,000 -253 94.95%] transfer maintenance of the SCADA system to a new *
vendor.
In the 1Q, pump repairs were needed at the Harrison
40,076 50,000 9,924 80.15%) Booster ($5893.55) and Crespo Tank ($2281.35)
10,370 45,000 -34,630 23.04%( -
251 2,000 -1,749 12.55%)
60,083 110,500 -50,417 54.37%)
6,757 10,400 -3,643 64.97%)
0 1,500 -1,500 0.0%
14,125 18,400 -4,275 76.76%] -
20,882 30,300 -9,418 68.92%)
10,352 16,000 -5,648 64.7%
1,730 7,500 -5,770 23.06%] .
2,191 4,000 -1,809 54.78%] .
804 1,100 -296 73.1%
810 3,000 -2,190 27.0% )
0 500 -500 0.0%)
15,887 32,100 -16,213 49.49%
8,078 18,500 -10,422 43.66%] -
1,455 6,000 -4,545 24.25%)
874 1,000 -126 87.41%
10,407 25,500 -15,093 40.81%
1,505 3,000 -1,495 50.17%
4,342 15,000 -10,659 28.94%)
4,700 18,000 -13,300 26.11%] .
3,850 20,000 -16,150 19.25%) .
20,506 34,500 -13,994 59.44%] .
34,903 90,500 -55,597 38.57%)
963 2,000 -1,037 48.13%
16,527 28,800 -12,273 57.38%] 1Q Bldg. rent paid thru October.
17,489 30,800 -13,311 56.78%)
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Sweetwater Springs Water District
FY 2016-17 Operating Budget Variances as of December 31, 2016 (50%)

Note: Document is cumulative. Changes to text made from previous reports are *'d in the "Changed" column and underlined.

$ Over
FY 2016-17 2016-17 Budget for % of Budget Notes (Underlined notes reflect *=Ch
Actual Budget the Year changes since last report) ged
Transportation & Travel
7120 - Seminars & related travel 816 2,650 -1,834 30.81%
7201 - Vehicle Gas 7,802 23,000 -15,198 33.92%)
7300 - Travel Reimbursements 2,720 6,400 -3,680 42.5%
Total Transportation & Travel 11,338 32,050 -20,712 35.38%)
Uniforms
6021.1 - Boots 855 1,500 -645 57.0%)
6021.3 - T-shirts 1,529 1,500 29 101.9%] .
6021.4 - Jackets 0 240 -240 0.0%
Total Uniforms 2,384 3,240 -856 73.57%
Utilities
7320 - Electricity 54,949 90,000 -35,051 61.06%] .
7321 - Propane 380 3,000 -2,620 12.67%)
Total Utilities 55,329 93,000 -37,671 59.49%
Total SERVICES & SUPPLIES 278,816 527,910 -249,094 52.82%)
Total OPERATING EXPENSES 897,717 1,747,825 -850,108 51.36%)
FIXED ASSET EXPENDITURES
8511.1 - Tank/Facilities Sites 0 22,000 -22,000 0.0%
8511.2 - Leasehold Improvements 0 0 0 0.0%
8517 - Field/office equipment 0 0 0 0.0%] .
8573 - Vehicles 39,333 45,000 -5,667 87.41%)
Total FIXED ASSET EXPENDITURES 89,333 67,000 -27,667 58.71%
Total Expense 937,050 1,814,825 -877,775 51.63%)
Net Ordinary Income 346,240 649,850 -303,610 53.28%)
Other Income/Expense
Other Expense
TRANSFERS TO OTHER FUNDS
8620.7 - Tfers to CIRF for CDR Revenue 0 270,375 -270,375 0.0%)
8620.3 - Tfers to CIRF 0 330,000 -330,000 0.0%
8620.10 - Tfers to CIRF PY Surplus Income 50,392 50,392 100.0%)
8620.5 - Tfers to Building Fund 0 15,000 -15,000 0.0%
8620.2 - Tfers to In-House Constr 0 25,000 -25,000 0.0%)
50,392 270,375 -219,983 18.64%
Total TRANSFERS TO OTHER FUNDS -
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Water Sales

Base Current CDR
Oct $120,214.89  $79,799.60 $21,865.58
Nov $105,494.33  $44,382.70 $19,278.19
Dec $119,855.42  $51,917.20 $21,799.79
TOTAL  $345564.64  $176,099.50 $62,943.56
July $105,543.52  $62,759.60
August $119,815.28 $71,367.00
Sept $105,351.55  $60,696.35
$330,710.35  $194,822.95
$676,274.99  $370,922.45





Table 2. Sweetwater Springs Water District
FY 2016-17 Capital Program Budget Variances as of December 31, 2016 (50%)

FY 16-17 $ Over
ACTUAL Budget for % of
(2Q) FY 2016-17 Year Budget Comments
REVENUE
Annual Assessment - New Services 5,902 27,000 -21,098 21.9%
Annual Assessment (County) 395,440 710,000 -314,560 55.7%
Prior Year Assessment 23,808 40,000 -16,192 59.5%
Capital Debt Reduction Charge 0 270,375 -270,375 0.0%
Interest | 4,182 8,000 -3,818 52.3%
New item- highlights additional FY 2015-16
amount beyond what was budgeted that could
. be transferred to CIRF based on surplus income]
Transfers to CIRF from Operations for
prior year surplus P 50,392 0 50,392 0.0%|and County fund levels. This transfer occured aj
y the beginning of FY2016-17 after adjustments
were made to County funds to reflect FY 2016-
17 policy reserve requirements.
Transfers to CIRF from Operations 0 330,000 -330,000 0.0%
Transfers to In-House Constr. from
Operations 0 25,000 -25,000 0.0%
Funds from Reserves
0 0 0 0.0%
TOTAL CAPITAL REVENUE 479,724 1,410,375 -930,651 34.0%
EXPENSES
Gen. Obligation Bonds Payments 64,284 64,284 0 100.0%
Cap One Revenue Bond 445,938 566,508 -120,570 78.7%
|Total Bond Payments 510,222 630,792 -120,570 80.9%
State Loan Payments 183,526 170,300 13,226 107.8%|Includes paying off smaller State Loan ($81,768
Private Placement Loan 133,357 117,007 16,350 114.0%|INCLUDES $16,350 TO BRANDIS TALLMAN
Total Debt Payments 827,105 918,099 -90,994 90.1%|Sum of all debt payments
2017 CIP 21,713 2,187,000 -2,165,287 1.0%|Design Expenses
In-House Construction Projects 7,335 25,000 -17,665 29.3%
TOTAL CAPITAL EXPENSES 856,154 3,130,099 -2,273,945 27.4%
TOTAL CAPITAL EXPENSES WO
Projected 2017 CIP Construction Exp 856,154 964,812 -108,659
SURPLUS/DEFICIT -376,429 -1,719,724 1,343,295 21.9%
=Net Operating Revenues + Assessments +
Net Capital Funding 133,961 348,077 -214,116 38.5%|Capital Interest - Total Debt Payments






County Balances FY 2016-17 and Reserves Above Policy

Beginning balances:
(Note: Warrants requested in FP 12 for last fiscal year are not subtracted from Cash until FP 1 of the next year. They are instead recorded as "Vendors Payable")

$25,428.46 $324,420.80 | $180,850.00 : $425,102.00 $0.00 $93,525.43 ($247,763.69) | $23,699.25; $24,750.00 ; $146,738.88 | $146,619.86 ; $510,829.00 $802,111.50 $2,430,883.03
coror | e ogring oy pesae FESemLom  mowse - Copl sietomn | SEGE saetom | SN capaanaven P IEoe| I 007 0
Policy Reserve (25%) Final Pymt Final Pymt Bank Loan Debt Reserve:
NAME|
Fund 76751 76752 76753 76754 76755 76756 76757 76758 76759 76760 76761 76762
7106 7106 7106 7106 7106 7106 7106 7106 7106 7106 7106 7106 Reserves Above
Dep't 0100 0200 0300 0400 0500 0600 0700 0800 0900 1000 1100 1200 Policy
Fp1-Jull $25.428.46 | $374,420.80 | $180,850.00 | $425,102.00 |  $0.00 $93273.21 | ($264,769.81) | $23,699.25 | $24,750.00 = $146,738.88 | $146,619.86 & $510,829.00 | $685,104.89 | $2,346,618.08 $967,341.22
FP2-Aug| $25,428.46 $312,174.80 | $180,850.00 | $436,956.00 $0.00 $92,914.15 ($230,239.42) | $23,699.25 | $24,750.00 - $146,738.88 : $146,619.86 : $510,829.00 $239,166.89 $1,884,459.41 $505,182.55
FP3-Sept $26,338.88 $412,174.80 | $180,850.00 : $436,956.00 $0.00 $87,356.60 ($291,578.36) $0.00 $0.00 $73,429.87 | $146,619.86 : $510,829.00 $239,166.89 $1,795,804.66 $441,277.80
FP4-Oct| $25,517.70 $414,462.98 | $180,850.00 | $436,956.00 $0.00 $87,356.60 ($289,502.51) $0.00 $0.00 $73,429.87 | $146,619.86 . $510,829.00 $239,166.89 $1,800,168.69 $445,641.83
FP5-Nov| $25517.70 | $534,462.98 | $180,850.00 | $436,956.00 |  $0.00 $87,356.60 | ($289,502.51) $0.00 $0.00 $73,429.87 | $146,619.86 | $510,829.00 | $239,166.89 | $1,920,168.69 $565,641.83
FP6-Dec| $29,244.72 $534,462.98 | $180,850.00 | $86,956.00 $0.00 $85,938.11 $460,106.12 $0.00 $0.00 $73,429.87 | $146,619.86 . $510,829.00 $239,166.89 $2,318,358.83 $963,831.97
FP7-Jan $0.00
FP8-Feb $0.00
FP9-Mar $0.00
FP10-Apr $0.00
FP11-May $0.00
FP12-Jun $0.00
FP 13 $0.00

(FINAL






FY 16-17

Difference

Table 3. FUND AND LOAN BALANCES (2Q Actual 2Q | 16-17 Budget] Actual-FY17 comments
DISTRICT RESERVES AND FUND BALANCES (2Q;
District Policy Reserves
corresponds to
Operating Budget Cash Reserve 534,463 262,174 | 272,289.23 |Operations (0100)
corresponds to
Operating Reserve (25% of Operating Exp) 86,956 | 436,956 | (350,000.25)|Operating Reserve 0300)
Included in Capital and
Debt Policy Reserve
Debt Repayment Reserve (25% of Debt pmt) 258,777 | 258,777 - ]1100)
Included in Capital and
Debt Policy Reserve
Capital Reserve 250,000] 250,000 - |@100)
Total District Policy 1,130,195| 1,207,907 (77,711)
TOTAL Reserves 2,171,739] 2,594,683 (422,944)
Difference between Total
Reserves Above (below) Policy 1,313,833 1,415,968 -102,135|and Policy Reserves
I
DISTRICT FUNDS
CIRF (7106-0600) 460,106 (37,859) 497,965
OPERATIONS (0100) 534,463 263,943 270,520
OPERATING RESERVE (0300) 86,956 425,102 -338,146
CAPITAL AND DEBT POLICY RESERVE
(1100) 510,829 508,777 2,053
IN HOUSE CONSTRUCTION (0500) 85,938 104,315 -18,377
BUILDING (0200) 180,850 195,850 -15,000
CAP ONE BOND AND CITIZENS BANK
LOAN (1200) 239,167 800,522 -561,355| 1st payment made
FEDERAL LOANS AND BONDS (0400) - 64,284 -64,284] payment made this year
STATE LOANS (0700, 0900) 73,430 170,172 -96,742] paid off smaller loan
Restricted to last payment for
State Loans; not included in
Total Reserves; paid off
STATE LOANS RESERVES (0800,1000) 146,620 171,370 -24,750]smaller State Loan
Total Funds Available 2,171,739 | 2,495,106 -323,367
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SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT

TO: Board of Directors AGENDA NO. V-D

FROM: Steve Mack, General Manager

Meeting Date: February 2, 2017

SUBJECT: APPROVAL OF RESOLUTION 17-01, MID-YEAR REVISION TO THE
FISCAL YEAR 2016-2017 OPERATING AND CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT
BUDGET

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Approval of Resolution 17-01 which approves a mid-year
revision to the Fiscal Year 2016-2017 (FY17) Operating and Capital Budget

FISCAL IMPACT: no impact
DISCUSSION:

Public agency budgeting is never exact — budgets are put together 4-5 months prior to
the fiscal year to which they apply and changes happen to the funding needs of the
various budget items. Midyear revisions to budgets allow for the correction of major
changes/omissions that occur during the year.

The major budget change for this fiscal year has been the decision to split the 2017 CIP
(the River Road/Old River Road Project) into 3 phases, self fund all phases of the
Project, start Phase 1 in this fiscal year, and forgo the USDA bond for which the District
has conditional approval.  The approval of the revised 2017-2024 CIP changed our
approach for completing the River Road/Old River Road project and the costs for this
fiscal year. The adopted FY 17 Budget includes revenue from the USDA Bond and the
large expense of the full 2017 CIP project. These revenues and costs are much different
than what we are now planning to do and make it difficult to evaluate the progress of
our current approach with the 2017 CIP.

Smaller changes are also appropriate for the Capital Budget. These unbudgeted Capital
expenses were opportunities that arose after the FY17 Budget was approved:

e The costs of the El Bonita Well Vault sealing ($25,000), which we realized we
needed to do early this fall.

e The cost of paying off the smaller State Loan ($81,768 in addition to the reserve
account amount).

e The cost of the Private Placement Loan Interest rate reset ($16,350).





Approval of Resolution 17-01, FY17 Mid-Year Budget Revision 2
February 2, 2017

We propose no changes in the Operating Budget; there will be differences shown in the
Actual vs Budgeted spreadsheets - these differences illuminate the differences
unanticipated events cause in our Budget but also allow following the progress of these
differences through the year.

In Fund and Loan Balances, fund balance and reserve amounts are changed to
reflect the FY 17 Actual Cash balances and the suggested changes. Of note, the
District ends the year with Reserves Above Policy well below $1 million ($463,139).
This means we will start the next year using Policy Reserves to help fund the first
half of our annual debt payments. We will move out of that situation by mid year
when water revenues and assessments come in. The FY 2017-2018 Budget will
show that happening.

The Exhibit A attached to Resolution 17-01 shows the budget detail of the District’s
Mid-Year Revised Budget. The proposed revisions are highlighted in yellow and are
all in the Capital section of the Budget.

Approving Resolution 17-01 will have no impact on District finances — District funds are
what they are. We have decided to do the River Road/Old River Road Project self
financed in phases. The mid-year revised budget does give a more accurate picture of
what the District is actually doing and what the District’s financial condition should be at
the end of this fiscal year. The Mid-Year Budget revision will be posted on the District’s
website.





Resolution No. 17-01

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE SWEETWATER
SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT ADOPTING THE REVISED FY 2016-17
OPERATING AND CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT BUDGET

WHEREAS, the Sweetwater Springs Water District Board of Directors adopted
the District’'s FY 2016-2017 (FY17) Budget on May 5, 2016; and

WHEREAS, certain Capital revenues and expenses identified in the approved
FY17 Budget have been substantially changed requiring the Capital portion of the
Budget be corrected to better reflect actual expected revenues and expenses; and

WHEREAS, revising the District's FY 2016-2017 Budget at mid fiscal year will
provide better financial guidance and information for the District Board, staff and public.

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the Board of Directors of the
Sweetwater Springs Water District hereby adopts the attached revised FY 2016-17
Operating and Capital Improvement Budget (Exhibit A) and authorizes the General
Manager to submit the attached budget to the Sonoma County Auditor.

I hereby certify that the foregoing is a full, true, and correct copy of a Resolution duly
and regularly adopted and passed by the Board of Directors of the SWEETWATER
SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT, Sonoma County, California, at a meeting held on
February 2, 2017, by the following vote.

>
e

Director yve 0

Sukey Robb-Wilder

Tim Lipinski

Rich Holmer

Gaylord Schaap

Pip Marquez de la Plata

Sukey Robb-Wilder
President of the Board of Directors

Attest: Julie A. Kenny
Clerk of the Board of Directors





ATTACHMENT A. SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT
REVISED OPERATING AND CAPITAL BUDGET, 2016-2017

FY 2016-17 OPERATING BUDGET

Difference
FY 14-15 FY15-16 FY 15-16 FY 16-17 FY 16-17 | FY17-FY16
FINAL (CASH)* BUDGET Actual BUDGET [BUDGET REV| Budgets FY 16-17 Original notes
REVENUE
OPERATING REVENUE
4031 - Water Bill Revenue
4031.1. - Capital Debt Reduction Ch 254,854 261,565 261,458 269,302 269,302 7,737 |3% rate increase
4031.1. - Water Sales - Base Rate 1,397,015 1,434,921 1,437,538 1,480,664 1,480,664 45,743 [3% rate increase
4031.1. - Water Sales - Usage .
Charges + Other 571,340 587,100 546,963 563,372 563,372 -23,728|Flat sales, 3% increase
4031.1. - Total Water Sales 2,223,209 2,022,021 1,984,501 2,044,036 2,044,036 22,015
Total OPERATING REVENUE 2,223,209 2,283,586 2,245,959 2,313,338 2,313,338 29,752
NON-OPERATING REVENUE
4445 - Grant Proceeds 0 0 0 - -
1700 - Interest 6,754 7,500 9,142 7,500 7,500 -
3600 - Construction New Services 13,663 7,000 6,712 7,000 7,000 -
3601 - Construction Service Upgrades 2,122 2,000 100 2,000 2,000 -
Crystal $1361/mo = $16,322
78,455 90,482 99,219 94,346 94,346 3,864 | \reT $6502/mo = $78,024
4032 - Rent
USBank CC refunds
4040 - Miscellaneous Income 25,476 1,500 8,891 1,500 1,500 " |So. Cty Credit
4117 - SCWA Reimbursement 2,495 2,500 2,495 2,500 2,500 -
Total NON-OPERATING REVENUE 128,965 110,982 126,559 114,846 114,846 3,864
Total Income 2,352,174 2,394,568 2,372,518 2,428,184| 2,428,184 33,616
EXPENSES
OPERATING EXPENSES
SALARY & BENEFITS
Salary
5910 - Wages 679,152 734,732 783,622 823,000 823,000 88,268 [Union MOU includes retirement pay provisions
5912 - Overtime| 22,998 31,479 28,379 34,400 34,400 2,921
5916 - On-Call Pay 30,200 34,083 33,428 37,700 37,700 3,617
5918 - Extra help - Contract 36,919 36,919 36,907 37,000 37,000 81
Total Salary 769,269 837,213 882,336 932,100 932,100 94,887
Benefits
5500 - Flex Spending 1,272 0| -296 0 0 -
5920 - Retirement 114,526 124,311 85,337 84,460 84,460 (39,851)|employees pay employee share
5922 - Payroll Taxes - Employel 14,044 14,438 15,548 16,329 16,329 1,891
5930 - Health/Dental/Vision/AFL] 129,894 145,668 140,619 146,000 146,000 332
5931 - Retiree health 10,453 7,000 8,140 7,000 7,000 -
5940 - Workers Comp Insuranc 16,939 36,000 31,838 36,000 36,000 - |year 2 of high rates due to injuries
Total Benefits 287,128 327,417 281,186 289,789 289,789 (37,628)
Total SALARY & BENEFITS 1,056,397 1,164,630 1,163,522 1,221,889| 1,221,889 57,259
SERVICES & SUPPLIES
Communications
Comcast -$84/month: $1008
6040-| - Internet service 1,819 1,800 1,778 1,850 1,850 50 |GotoMyPC $21.90/mo = $263
Sonic.net $143.7/Qtr. (A) = $575
Verizon $65/mo: $780
Misc parts/holders: $200
6040-C - Cell Phones 4,728 4,300 4,417 4,050 4,050 (250) Cell phone reimburse $255/mo - $3060
. . American Messaging $35/mo: $420
6040-P - Pagers & Radios 642 600 485 620 620 20 Misc. parts/batteries: $200
Ans. Service: $2000
6040-T - Telephones 18,357 19,950 14,670 17,000 17,000 (2,950) Phones: $1,200/mo: $14,400
Total Communications 25,546 26,650 21,350 23,520 23,520 (3,130)
Insurances
6101 - Liability & Auto Ins. 31,737 32,200 32,175 32,200 32,200 -
Total Insurances 31,737 32,200 32,175 32,200 32,200 -
0

Maint/Rep - Office & Vehicles

1/26/2017






ATTACHMENT A. SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT
REVISED OPERATING AND CAPITAL BUDGET, 2016-2017

FY 14-15
FINAL (CASH)*

FY15-16
BUDGET

FY 15-16
Actual

FY 16-17
BUDGET

FY 16-17
BUDGET REV

Difference
FY17-FY16
Budgets

FY 16-17 Original notes

6140 - Vehicle Maintenance

25,338

16,000

14,784

18,000

18,000

2,000

6151 - Office Maintenance

6,220

5,700

5,717

6,200

6,200

500

Alarm System - $130/qtr.=$520

PacketFusion maint. contract - $1500/year
The Compute Wizard - $175/mo = $2100/year
Copy mach. maint - 1200/yr

Call One - $325/yr

Landscaping - $300/yr

Misc / Other - $250

Total

Maint/Rep - Office & Vehicles

31,558

21,700

20,501

24,200

24,200

2,500

Mai

nt/Repair - Facilities

6085 - Janitorial Services

7,185

8,140

7,397

8,500

8,500

360

Altech (office Janitorial): $212/mo = $2544
United Site Svces (port-o-lets): $260/mo =
$3120

Sunrise Garbage $1600

Sewer - GVTP ($1200)

6100 - SCADA System

33,196

5,000

6,801

5,000

5,000

6180 - Distribution System
Repairs

26,352

35,000

12,749

50,000

50,000

15,000

Not accounting for "In- House Const." off-set

6235 - Treatment Sys/Well
Repairs

97,275

60,000

53,319

45,000

45,000

(15,000)

estimating (1) well rehab

6143 - Generator Maintenance

2,810

3,500

1,814

2,000

2,000

(1,500)

This is an off-year for the bi-annual
maintenace service.

Total Maint/Repair - Facilities

166,818

111,640

82,080

110,500

110,500

(1,140)

Mi

S

cellaneous Expenses

6280 - Memberships

9,486

9,700

10,076

10,400

10,400

700

s}

USA $165

AWWA $420

CSDA $5700

CUWCC $2600 (reimbursed by SCWA)
MR Chamber -$50

RR Chamber - $150

Cal Rural $1100

WCWW $200

6303 - Claims

2,054

1,500

1,500

1,500

6593 - Governmental Fees

18,872

20,500

15,772

18,400

18,400

(2,100)

Elections costs: $1,000
Notice of Determination $230
Parcel List $265

LAFCO $6,400

Hazmat $1100

Operator license fees $400
System fees $10,000

Total Mi us Expenses

30,412

31,700

25,848

30,300

30,300

(1,400))

Offi

ce Expense

6410 - Postage

16,537

16,000

11,403

16,000

16,000

Billing (2000 pieces @ $.485 X 12 months) =
$11,650

Prop 218 mailing: 4000 X .485 = $1,940

1 extra mailing: 3600 X .485 = $1,750

Other mail

6430 - Printing Expense

5,206

7,500

4,666

7,500

7,500

Window Envelopes $1100
Return Envelopes $950
Water Bills + Autopay $1500
Doorhangers $400

Turn Off Notices $600
Letterhead $250

Misc. Inserts $250

Prop 218 notice: $700
Checkblanks $200
Tagbooks $700

6461 - Office Supplies

3,973

4,000

5,734

4,000

4,000

Supplies $3000
Plants/Landscaping $150
Christmas Tree $80
Christmas party $400
Business lunches $75
Paper products/coffee $250

6800 - Subscriptions/Legal Noti

974

1,100

759

1,100

1,100

Press Democrat $320

Legal Notices $400
Sonoma West $70

Safety Meeting Outlines $85

6890 - Computers/Software

2,732

3,000

598

3,000

3,000

Antivirus softsware $120

Cloud software $70

Misc $400

Quickbooks upgrade $300

3 workstations - $2000 (KG/LK/CMH)
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ATTACHMENT A. SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT
REVISED OPERATING AND CAPITAL BUDGET, 2016-2017

Difference
FY 14-15 FY15-16 FY 15-16 FY 16-17 FY 16-17 | FY17-FY16
FINAL (CASH)* BUDGET Actual BUDGET [BUDGET REV| Budgets FY 16-17 Original notes
6579 - Furniture [ 500 487 500 500 -
Total Office Expense! 29,422 32,100 23,646 32,100 32,100 -
Operating Supplies
6300 - Chemicals 15,617 18,000 10,370 18,500 18,500 500
6880 - Tools and Equipment 2,938 5,500 3,750 6,000 6.000 500 Pipe locator: $1,000., Cut-off saw $900.
6881 - Safety Equipment 990 1,000 90 1,000 1,000 -
Total Operating Supplies 19,545 24,500 14,210 25,500 25,500 1,000
Professional Services 0
6083 - Laundry Service 2,183 3,400 2,207 3,000 3,000 (400)|Mission $90/2 weeks = $2340
6514 - Lab/Testing Fees 12,245 15,000 13,392 15,000 15,000 -
IEDA $12,500
Open Spatial (Mapping): $4,200
6570 - Consultant Fees 22,565 13,000 16,900 18,000 18,000 5,000 [Computer Wizard (non-maintenance work)
$800
Misc. (John Thompson?) -$500
6590 - Engineering 0, - 0 -
6610 - Legal 15,287 20,000 12,053 20,000 20,000 -
ADP $54/2 weeks = $1300
Authorize.net $500
Auditor $8,000
. . Harbortouch $16,000
6630 - Audit/Accounting 34,572 34,500 30,566 34,500 34,500 ~ |E-check fees = $1200
West America fees $230/mo = $2760
1099 = $175
County Accounting Fees = $700
Total Professional Services 86,852 85,900 75,118 90,500 90,500 4,600
Rents & Leases
6820 - Equipment 2,347 2,000 967 2,000 2,000 - |Action rents: $2000
6840 - Building & Warehouse 27,495 28,100 28,045 28,800 28,800 700 |59 rent increase: $2,400/mo = $28,800
Total Rents & Leases 29,842 30,100 29,012 30,800 30,800 700
Transportation & Travel
JK - $250
7120 - Seminars & related travel 2,898 2,650 702 2,650 2,650 - [LK and CMH - $400
Field: $1500, GM - $500
7201 - Vehicle Gas 19,254 25,000 19,113 23,000 23,000 (2,000)
SM - $50/mo = $600 (A)
7300 - Travel Reimbursements 5,731 6,400 5,606 6,400 6,400 - |KG $400/mo = $4800 (F)
CMH/LK/JIK $80/mo = $960 (A)
Total Transportation & Travel 27,883 34,050 25,421 32,050 32,050 (2,000)
Uniforms
6021.1 - Boots 1,230 1,500 991 1,500 1,500 - |$205 x 7 = $1450
6021.3 - T-shirts 2,250 1,500 352 1,500 1,500 -
6021.4 - Jackets 0, 240 0 240 240 - |2 jackets
Total Uniforms 3,480 3,240 1,343 3,240 3,240 -
Utilities
[7320 - Electricity 85,748 100,000 87,614 90,000 90,000 (10,000)
|7321 - Propane 2,262 2,000 2,415 3,000 3,000 1,000
Total Utilities 88,010 102,000 90,029 93,000 93,000 (9,000)
Total SERVICES & SUPPLIES 571,105 535,780 440,732 527,910 527,910 (7,870)
Total OPERATING EXPENSES 1,627,502 1,700,410 1,604,254 1,749,799| 1,749,799 49,389
OPERATING SURPLUS/DEFICIT $724,672 $694,158 $768,264 678,385|  $678,385[$ (15,773)
FIXED ASSET EXPENDITURES
8517 - Field/Office equipment 8,113 - 3,327
8573 - Vehicles | 35,656 50,000 30,366 45,000 45,000 (5,000)|New vehicle
8511.1 - Tank/Facilities Sites 7,119 22,000 28,940 22,000 22,000 - Monte Rio Tanks Road - $10,000
Park Ave Tank Liner - $8.000,
8511.6 - Leasehold Improvements - -
Total EIXED ASSET EXPENDITURES 50,888 72,000 62,633 67,000 67,000 (5,000)
TRANSFERS TO OTHER FUNDS
8620.7 - Tfers to CIRF for CDR Revenud 253,947 261,565 261,565 270,375 270,375 8,810
8620.3 - Tfers to CIRF 260,000 320,000 320,000 330,000 330,000 10,000
8620.5 - Tfers to Building Fund 15,000 15,000 15,000 15,000 15,000 -
8620.2 - Tfers to In-House Constr 25,000 25,000 25,000 25,000 25,000 -
Total TRANSFERS TO OTHER FUNDS 553,947 621,565 621,565 640,375 640,375 18,810
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ATTACHMENT A. SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT
REVISED OPERATING AND CAPITAL BUDGET, 2016-2017

Difference
FY 14-15 FY15-16 FY 15-16 FY 16-17 FY 16-17 FY17-FY16
FINAL (CASH)* BUDGET Actual BUDGET [BUDGET REV| Budgets FY 16-17 Original notes
SURPLUS/DEFICIT 119,837 593 84,066 9,475 9,475 8,882
CAPITAL BUDGET |
REVENUE/SOURCES OF FUNDS |
Annual Assessment - New Services 52,719 27,000 27,949 27,000 27,000 -
Annual Assessment (County) 720,216 710,000 722,085 710,000 710,000 N
Prior Year Assessment | 55,059 40,000 25,447 40,000 40,000 -
Capital Debt Reduction Charge 253,947 261,565 261,565 269,302 269,302 7,737
(17,000) Reduced to reflect lower amount and lower
Interest| 11,995 25,000 8,367 8,000 8,000 ! interest rates
(30,000) No USDA Bond; reserves needed for Phase 1
Funds from Reserves 683,000 630,000 808,385 600,000 ' of 2017 CIP
USDA 2016 Bond 2,100,000 No USDA Bond
Transfers to CIRF from Operations 260,000 320,000 343,184 330,000 330,000 10,000
Transfers to In-House Constr. from Operatid 25,000 25,000 25,000 25,000 25,000 -
TOTAL REVENUE 2,061,936 2,038,565 2,221,982 3,509,302 2,009,302 (29,263)
EXPENSES [ [ |
[DEBT PAYMENTS
|Gen. Obligation Bonds Payments 0, 64,284 64,284 64,284 64,284 - [USDA refinance resolution
Cap One Revenue Bond 566,508 566,508 567,492 566,508 566,508 -
1768 add $81,768 for paying off smaller
State Loan Payments 170,172 170,300 170,172 170,300 252,068 ' State loan
Private Placement Loan 234,013 234,014 234,013 234,014 250,364 16,350 | add $16,350 for PPL reset costs
TOTAL DEBT PAYMENTS 970,693 1,035,106 1,035,961 1,035,106 1,133,224 98,118
2014 CIP Design and Construction Mgmgt 1,234 -
2014 CIP Construction - -
2014 Mill Street Emergency
2015 CIP Design and Construction Mgmt - - - -
2015 CIP Construction 971,912 - -
2016 CIP Design and Construction Mgmt 64,917 135,000 135,000
. 800,000 "
2016 CIP Construction 891,584 Constract Award amount plus encrhmnt permit
2017 CIP Bond Counsel for Financing 50,000 - |Estimated cost of bond counsel for financing
2017 CIP Design and Construction Mgmt 175,000 123,395 157,000 92,000 | (83,000)|Design of 2017 CIP in FY16, CM in FY17
895,400 1,980,000 163,400
2017 CIP Construction ! T $732,000 (163,400) Based on preliminary design costs
2018 CIP Design and Construction Mgmt No design costs for 2018 CIP
No costs; Award in FY2018 (Treatment Plant
2018 CIP Construction Filter)
Contruct seals for well vaults at EI Bonita Well
25,000 25,000 [Field for flooding prevention; make operational
El Bonita Well Vault Improvements improvements for the well vaults.
In-House Construction Projects 37,463 25,000 36,042 25,000 25,000 -
Mapping Project 14,811 - -
Total Capital Expenses 1,090,337 2,030,400 1,186,021 2,212,000 874,000 | (1,156,400)
TOTAL EXPENSES 2,061,030 3,065,506 2,221,982 3,247,106 2,007,224 (1,058,282)
Total Expenses = Accrual Expenses
End of FY17 Accrual Expenses 3,247,106 2,007,224 because no FY18 Obligation in FY17
SURPLUS/DEFICIT 906 -1,026,941 0 263,269 2,078 A
Net Operating Revenues + Assessments
Net Capital Funding 503,080 349,052 436,702 359,743 260,552 (88,500)[+CDRC+Cap Interest-Total Debt Payments
FUND AND LOAN BALANCES (EOY!
DISTRICT RESERVES AND FUND AND LOAN BALANCES
Operating Budget Cash Reserve 303,535 255,061 255,061 262,174 262,174 7,113
Operating Budget Reserve (10%+15% 11.854
of Operating Exp) 399,812 425,102 425,102 436,956 436,956 '
Debt Repayment Reserve (25% of Debt
pmt) 260,829 258,777 258,777 258,777 258,777
Capital Reserve 250,000 250,000 250,000 250,000 250,000 -
Total District Policy 1,214,176 1,188,939 1,188,939 1,207,907 | 1,207,907 18,969
TOTAL Reserves EOY 2,988,435 2,442,556 2,259,513 2,495,106 | 1,671,066 (771,490)
Reserves Above (below) Policy 1,774,259 1,253,616 1,070,574 1,287,199 463,159 |  (790,457)
ACCRUAL TOTAL Reserves EQY 2,495,106 | 1,671,066 No FY18 Obligations
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ATTACHMENT A. SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT
REVISED OPERATING AND CAPITAL BUDGET, 2016-2017

Difference
FY 14-15 FY15-16 FY 15-16 FY 16-17 FY 16-17 | FY17-FY16
FINAL (CASH)* BUDGET Actual BUDGET [BUDGET REV| Budgets FY 16-17 Original notes
Accrual Reserves Above (below) Policy 1,287,199 463,159 Ditto
DISTRICT FUNDS

CIRF (7106-0600) 529,149 (85,318)| | ($247,764) (37.859)|  (825,642)| (740,324)
OPERATIONS (0100) 399,812 255,061 $324,421 263,943 249,830 (5,231)
OPERATING RESERVE ( 0300) 303,535 425,102 $425,102 425,102 425,102 -
CAPITAL AND DEBT POLICY R
RESERVE (1100) 510,829 508,777 $510,829 508,777 508,777
IN HOUSE CONSTRUCTION 93 52 18,701
(0500) 104,315 123,106 $93525 104,315 104,315 (8,791)
BUILDING (0200) 165,850 180,850 $180,850 195,850 195,850 15,000
CAP ONE AND CITIZENS BANK
LOAN (1200) 804,505 800,522 802,112 800,522 802,112 1590
FEDERAL LOANS AND BONDS - 64,284 ° 64,284 64,284 Not a fund at the County
STATE LOANS (0700,0900) 170,438 170,172 170,438 170,172 146,438 (23,734)| Smaller loan payed off.
STATE LOANS RESERVES
(0800&1000) 171,370 171,370 171,370 171,370 146,739 (24831 Not in Total Reserves
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SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT

TO: Board of Directors AGENDA NO. V-E

FROM: Steve Mack, General Manager

Meeting Date: February 2, 2017

SUBJECT: FY 2017-2018 BUDGET PROCESS, APPOINTMENT OF THE AD
HOC BUDGET COMMITTEE

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Receive a report on the District FY 2017-2018
Budget process, formally appoint the ad hoc Budget Committee, and provide
direction to staff.

FISCAL IMPACT: None
DISCUSSION:

At the January Board meeting we started the discussion on the Fiscal Year
2017-2018 (FY18) Budget. Table 1 below identifies a calendar for the budget
approval process. Milestones include the Proposition 218 process which has a
45-day notice and a public hearing for increases in rates and fees, if
necessary, and a public hearing on the Budget itself. A Proposition 218
Notice will be necessary for any rate increase for Fiscal Year 2016-17 or
beyond. At the January meeting Gaylord Schaap and Tim Lipinski
volunteered to serve on the ad hoc Budget Committee but because this
action was not noticed in the agenda report, formal appointment was put off
until this meeting.

Directors Lipinski and Schaap met with the General Manager on January 19
to discuss budget issues. Issues discussed included:

e Mid-Year Budget Adjustment for FY 16-17. This item is discussed
elsewhere on this meeting agenda.

e Water Rate Increase. Whether we self fund or finance with loans, an
adequate capital program to make the repairs necessary with our water
distribution system requires more revenue than we are taking in with
existing rates. It is important for the District's financial health to
continue with the small annual increase approach. The goal of the plan
is to achieve $500,000 in annual net capital funding and that has not
been achieved yet. The reduced water use mandated by the statewide
drought (that appears to be over for Northern California) has slowed
this down and we don't know when, if ever, water use will rebound to
historical levels.
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e Staff is working on a draft budget. The flooding in January has slowed
this down but we will have a draft by mid February.

Table 1. FY 2017-2018 Budget Preparation

Approved Capital Improvement Program December 1, 2016

Introduce Budget Process January 5, 2017

Budget Committee meetings February/March
2017

Draft Budget to Board for Discussion/Action, March 2, 2017

Including Direction on Water Rates

Prop 218 Mailing for Water Rate Increase March 20, 2017

Draft Budget to Board for Discussion/Action April 6, 2017

Approve Budget May 4, 2017

e Prop 218 Public Hearing on Rates
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SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT

TO: Board of Directors AGENDA NO. V-F

FROM: Steve Mack, General Manager

Meeting Date: February 2, 2017

SUBJECT: STAFF REPORT ON EFFECT AND RESPONSE TO JANUARY
FLOODING

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Receive a report on the effects of the January
flooding on District facilities and operations and provide direction to staff.

FISCAL IMPACT: None

DISCUSSION:

For the past few months we have been periodically discussing the District's flooding plan for
the Guerneville System because of State Division of Drinking Water concerns about System
water quality when the El Bonita Well Field becomes inundated by Russian River flooding.
The well field is relative low lying and flooding by the Russian River can be expected on a
frequent basis. The District had negotiated a flooding plan the included sealing the well
vaults, operational changes at the Highland Treatment Plant, and customer notifications.

The first week of January it became apparent that flooding of the El Bonita Well Field was
likely and by January 6 it appeared imminent. On Sunday, January 8, District staff came into
the office to do the automated phone calling that provided the customer notice of the
precautionary warning. In the early morning of January 9 the well field became inundated
and stayed that way until Thursday, January 12. The Flooding Plan requires two days of
clear samples post flood and the sample results are not available until approximately 24
hours after the samples are taken, so the end of the precautionary warning period happened
on Saturday afternoon. Because that was a weekend and the following Monday was a
holiday (Martin Luther King Day), notice to our customers canceling the precautionary
warning was provided on Tuesday, January 17. The River has stayed high since then with
peaks from following storms but the well field has stayed above any flooding. Observations:

This was the first time for this kind of customer natification. We got many call backs and
have edited our call out message for better clarity for what we are trying to convey. Many of
the call backs (and maybe not call backs) thought it was a boil water notice.

The Flooding Plan worked mostly as expected. We would like to discuss with the Division of
Drinking Water (DDW) about the sampling requirements - it makes more sense to use to be
sampling water quality during the flooding event, rather than after it is over. The delay
prolongs the precautionary warning period unnecessarily and the concern for water quality
impairment should be during the flooding more than after it is over.

The well vault seals worked well. Well 4 had 19 inches in the vault post flood but that was
from leakage along a distribution line seal. Well 5 apparently had no leakage anywhere and





January Flooding Report 2
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Well 6 had 2 inches of water which leaked through the seal - that has been fixed as well as
the distribution line seal failure in the Well 4 vault.

The flooding caused no major damage to El Bonita Well Field or other District facilities.
Operations went smoothly. A major impact of the Flooding Plan is the necessity to manually
operate Highland tanks and the wells. On-call staff have to work in the middle of the night to
keep the system going during flooding events.

The District has property involved in the Santa Rosa Avenue landslide. No District facilities or
water lines were affected; we know of at least one residential meter that has been buried.
We will provide you with more details when we know more.
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SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT

TO: Board of Directors AGENDA NO. VI

FROM: Steve Mack, General Manager

Meeting Date: February 2, 2017

Subject: GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Receive report from the General Manager.
FISCAL IMPACT: None
DISCUSSION:

1. Water Production and Sales: Water sales in December were 13,646 units (31.3 AF,
Monte Rio cycle) and production was 51.8 AF. Compared to one year ago, sales and
production were higher (29.2 AF and 47.4 AF, respectively). The water lost percentage is
up some (21.2) and remains at historically low levels. The reduction from December 2013,
the State Board standard, was 12.8%. GPCD for December was 59.8. Figure 1 shows
sales, production and % difference since 2008 for the Guerneville and Monte Rio Systems
separately.

2. Leaks: In December we had 7 total leaks and spent 45 man-hours on them. Those are
fewer leaks and man-hours compared to the prior month and more leaks and man-hours
compared to December one year ago. Figure 2 shows service and main leaks separately
with a total breaks line as well. The District continues to be at historic lows for this.

3. Guerneville Rainfall: The rainy season continues to do well and, as you know, we had
flooding this month - the River crest was approximately 38 feet which inundated the El
Bonita Well Field for several days. Rainfall is well above the near-term average and near
what | have as the long-term average.

4. River Lane Property Sale: Nothing to report for January; | suspect the Rec and Park
District was busy with the floods this month.

5. El Bonita Flooding Plan: The Plan was followed during the January flooding; this is
discussed in the Administrative Section of the Agenda.

6. 2017 CIP: Coastland is waiting on the County for the Encroachment Permit. Again, |
suspect the flooding has slowed this down.

7. Toilet Rebate/Direct Install Program: There were no toilet rebates reported for
December.

8. In-House Construction Projects: No in-house projects reported for January.

9. Gantt Chart: In February the Gantt Chart shows budget work and the Comment Letter for
the Fish Flow Project. Both are on the agenda.
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Figure 1. Monte Rio and Guerneville Sales and Production 12 Month
Moving Averages, SSWD Since March 2010
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Figure 3. Guerneville Cumulative Monthly Rainfall
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Figure 4. Sweetwater Springs WD Calendar Gantt Chart| Jan-16 | Feb-16 | Mar-16 | Apr-16 [ May-16 | Jun-16{ Jul-16 | Aug-16 | Sep-16 | Oct-16 | Nov-16 | Dec-16 | Jan-17 | Feb-17 | Mar-17 | Apr-17 [ May-17| Jun-17 | Jul-17 [FY18+
Ongoing Activit:

Board Action

Current Month

By Activity
Action Item/Milestone Projected
Completion
/
Milestone
Date

Crystal Communications Lease

2014-15 Budget Preparation
¢ Capital Improvement Program
Board Discussion

o Staff Budget Preparation Begins

¢ Ad Hoc Budget Committee Reviews
Draft Budget

o Draft Budget to Board for
Discussion/Action

o Approve Budget -

Capital Projects

¢ Update/Review District CIP -

o 2017 CIP Design
¢ 2017 CIP Award of Contract
e 2017 CIP Construction Starts

Urban Water Management Plan Oct-16

Water Rights SCWA Protest] -

Emergency Response Plan Review
Building Lease

¢ lLease Renewal August-17
Policies and Procedures

»__Other Policy

o Overall Review
Board and General Manager Annual Review -

i
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